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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Good afternoon. I

          3  am just going to briefly introduce my colleagues who

          4  are present. Council Member Martin Malave-Dilan,

          5  from Brooklyn; Linares from Manhattan; Nelson from

          6  Brooklyn; Fiala from Staten Island and Council

          7  Member Carrion from the Bronx. I am your Chair,

          8  Council Member Wooten, from Brooklyn.

          9                 Good afternoon. Today the Committee

         10  on Education will hold a hearing on summer school

         11  and promotion policies at the Board of Education.

         12                 This past year, the Board's heavy

         13  reliance on the result of standardized tests in

         14  order to determine promotion has brought us many

         15  issues.

         16                 First, the poor performance of New

         17  York City fourth graders on the New English Language

         18  Arts Exam resulted in a large number of students

         19  having to attend summer school.

         20                 Then, in the spring City-wide reading

         21  and math tests were given to third, fifth, sixth and

         22  seventh graders. Students are not promoted solely

         23  based on the test scores. On September 9th the

         24  testing company revealed that a scoring error had

         25  been made and as a result many students were forced
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          2  to attend summer school by mistake. That should

          3  never have happened.

          4                 Now the Board is implementing a new

          5  promotional policy for students in grade three

          6  through 12, and among other things, this new policy

          7  establishes system-wide performance standards and

          8  will use multiple criteria in determining promotion,

          9  includes students' work, grades and attendance.

         10                 However, there are many issues

         11  regarding summer school and the problem of testing,

         12  attendance and poor condition.

         13                 As chair of this Education Committee

         14  and as a parent who had children to go through this

         15  system and now a grandparent who has three children

         16  going through the system, I have great concern about

         17  the need for providing our students with the best

         18  learning environment, both during the school year

         19  and in summer school, so they may be successful in

         20  the future.

         21                 The purpose of today's hearing is to

         22  hear the Board's plan for implementation, its new

         23  promotional policy and its plan for improving summer

         24  school for the future.

         25                 We have been one of the most talked
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          2  about agencies in the City of New York. I don't

          3  believe that we intentionally feel that we are in

          4  the position to defend ourselves, but rather correct

          5  ourselves. And you noted that I said ourselves, I am

          6  not saying that this is an individual kind of

          7  situation. This is a situation that needs to be

          8  addressed by every education across the board that

          9  believes in children.

         10                 In the past, people have used

         11  education as a platform for all kinds of serving

         12  interests. What we are saying is, if you are a

         13  friend of education and you truly believe that there

         14  can be major changes, then I challenge you to put

         15  all of the rhetoric aside, come together as one, and

         16  try to fix, not with a band-aid, but fix this system

         17  so that our children and our parents in this town

         18  can feel comfortable that this is the right way to

         19  go, that the Board of Education's intentions are

         20  good. And sometimes we do make a few mistakes, but

         21  mistakes are those kinds of things that have to be

         22  corrected and can be corrected.

         23                 I am going to deviate from major

         24  presenters today to acknowledge and ask one of our

         25  Central Board members, Dr. Irving Hamer, who
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          2  represents the Borough of Manhattan, if he would

          3  come forward.

          4                 I don't like to separate people, all

          5  of you are the same. So I want my principals all at

          6  the same time together at the beginning. I would

          7  like for the Deputy Chancellor to please come up.

          8  This is not a separated cause here. We want to be in

          9  the position that eventually after this hearing we

         10  all will be at somebody's table together to rectify

         11  some of the situations that we find is occurring

         12  here in our education system.

         13                 I welcome all of you, and just please

         14  identify yourself for the record.

         15                 Have I been joined by any other

         16  Council member?

         17                 As they come in, and they will from

         18  other engagements, I will introduce my colleagues of

         19  the Education Committee.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 DR. HAMER: Good afternoon,

         22  Chairperson Wooten, Council Members. My name is

         23  Irving Hamer, I am a member of the Central Board of

         24  Education, representing the Borough of Manhattan.

         25                 I was appointed to this
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          2  responsibility by Borough President C. Virginia

          3  Fields in July of 1998. And I have had an

          4  extraordinary time since joining the Board. Last

          5  year I was struggling with police officers in the

          6  schools, and this year I am the outlyer with respect

          7  to the social promotion policy.

          8                 I have agreed to come and testify

          9  before you this afternoon, because I feel somewhat

         10  infamous and somewhat isolated because of my vote on

         11  the promotional policy as it was presented to the

         12  Board of Education earlier this month.

         13                 If, if you don't recall, was the

         14  single Board member who voted no on this policy. I

         15  have come before you today to explain as clearly as

         16  I possibly can why it is that I voted no. Before I

         17  get into the substance of my testimony, let me say

         18  categorically that I do feel in colleagueship with

         19  the Chancellor and his senior staff. I feel they

         20  have done a job under some duress and I hope that

         21  will become clear as I go through my comments. I

         22  will do this as clearly and as succinctly as I

         23  possibly can and am eager to engage in any

         24  conversation that you deem appropriate.

         25                 The press to end social promotion is
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          2  a political soundbite difficult to impose.

          3                 On one hand, and this for me is very

          4  important, no reasonable person, which I think

          5  myself to be, would support students being promoted

          6  to successive grades without the requisite skills

          7  acknowledged to succeed.

          8                 So, I am not a proponent of social

          9  promotion as we have known it. My no vote on the

         10  policy does not represent that.

         11                 On the other hand, ladies and

         12  gentlemen, it is difficult to imagine a retention

         13  policy intended to provide students more time to

         14  acquire the skills and knowledge essential to being

         15  a successful student a bad thing. That is exactly

         16  what has happened. I think we have a bad policy, and

         17  it is in response to a tremendous amount of public

         18  and political pressure.

         19                 I will remind you that Governor

         20  Pataki, Mayor Giuliani and President Clinton himself

         21  have all been advocates of ending social promotion.

         22  That does not make them bad people but I do think

         23  there are some provisions of this policy that they

         24  don't quite understand.

         25                 I think it is a bad policy for some
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          2  of the following reasons:

          3                 I think there will be a

          4  disproportionate impact on students who are already

          5  in persistently low-performing schools. And I think

          6  the impact will disproportionately affect

          7  African-American and Latino children.

          8                 I think there is no evidence of

          9  financial support for this policy. I think that

         10  there is no existing infrastructure to implement

         11  this policy. I think the policy, now that it has

         12  been passed by the Board of Education, no longer has

         13  the incentives to receive the kind of sustained

         14  financial support it needs to be successful, not

         15  next year, not the year after that, five years down

         16  the road, ten years down the road.

         17                 One of the most unfortunate examples

         18  of the pressure being put on the system to implement

         19  a mandatory program before it is ready to be

         20  implemented best exemplified by what occurred this

         21  summer.

         22                 I think that we rushed, my colleagues

         23  here were rushed and pushed very hard to mount a

         24  massive program without adequate notification

         25  provisions, some ambiguity about who is required to
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          2  attend, antiquated attendance procedures, extensive

          3  no shows to summer school, a marginal but impressive

          4  number of students passing their exams to

          5  characterize the summer as being one where we rushed

          6  and we pushed really hard to put something together

          7  without adequate support.

          8                 I am totally confident that this

          9  staff, and this Chancellor, with adequate supports

         10  and the appropriate time to mount a meaningful

         11  program could have mounted a meaningful, very

         12  successful summer school program this past summer.

         13                 I will give you one example as I

         14  review some of the data, and try to doublecheck and

         15  verify the data.

         16                 There were some 2,400 eighth graders

         17  who took an exam in the summer who all failed. The

         18  2,400 eighth graders are in some stage of being

         19  retained to do the eighth grade again. The

         20  categorical question that you have to ask, I have to

         21  ask, the staff has to ask, is what is the program

         22  for the 2,400 students or any other student

         23  retained? What classes are they going to be in? What

         24  teachers are they going to get? What are the support

         25  structures that will be put into place to support
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          2  those young people?

          3                 The policy has a difficulty, in my

          4  judgment, with enforcement. There is no appeals

          5  procedure. Now, you have already had some experience

          6  with making some mistakes. Going forward, the policy

          7  ought to have appeals procedures, so that if for

          8  some reason someone is erroneously promoted, or

          9  erroneously held back, they have some place to go to

         10  get some kind of relief. The policy does not have

         11  that inherent in it as it now stands.

         12                 Again, the question is about remedial

         13  supports for students. My view about education and

         14  about young people is that if I, as a child, or my

         15  son, who is a student in public schools here in the

         16  City of New York, has a remedial need and is

         17  threatened with the prospect of being held back, he

         18  or she should get very sustained, very specific,

         19  very predictable remedial supports, those ought to

         20  be available, you shouldn't have to get them after

         21  the fact, you shouldn't have to beg for them, they

         22  should exist and they should be there.

         23                 Those costs money. They cost a lot of

         24  money to make those available.

         25                 When I read the regulations in the
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          2  policy as it was put before the Board of Education,

          3  I couldn't help but laugh about one plan in the

          4  report, or in the proposal, and that happened to be

          5  the 90 percent attendance requirement for students.

          6                 There is a 90 percent attendance

          7  requirement for students in the regulations and in

          8  the policy as it now stands.

          9                 I was stunned because we absolutely

         10  don't have a similar regulation for the employee,

         11  the adults, the teachers and the administrators in

         12  the system do not have a 90 percent attendance

         13  requirement, and indeed some people come to work 80

         14  percent of the school year, still are employed and

         15  go forward. It is a very shocking standard, one

         16  standard for the children and a different standard

         17  for the adults.

         18                 I think that the policy and

         19  regulations as they now stand are to be credited for

         20  what we call multiple criteria. So, instead of being

         21  singularly dependent upon the exam going forward,

         22  the policy and regulations call for multiple

         23  criteria.

         24                 Now, I think that is a good thing. I

         25  think it is a bad thing that the criteria are not
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          2  weighted. That is what usually reigns, what usually

          3  carries the day, is the test score.

          4                 So in the current policy, teacher

          5  judgment, performance in the classroom, attendance,

          6  and the test score are supposed to be considered

          7  before a child is promoted or held back.

          8                 But because there is no weight, my

          9  fear is that the test score will be the single

         10  primary engine, what we call the iron law of

         11  promotion.

         12                 I have gone forward to say that we

         13  have a situation in New York City where there are

         14  persistently low-performance schools, that have been

         15  persistently low-performing for a very long time and

         16  the students in those schools bear an awful lot of

         17  burden for what happens.

         18                 What is striking about this new

         19  proposal, this now new policy and regulation, is

         20  that children can be held back multiple times. So,

         21  my child could be held back three, four or five

         22  times before he or she got promoted to the next

         23  grade. It is problematic to me that a child could be

         24  held back so many times.

         25                 I think that instead of being
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          2  threatened with multiple retentions, we ought to be

          3  focusing our resources and attention on children

          4  between kindergarten and grade three. We already

          5  have done some remarkable work in this system,

          6  ground-breaking work in this system with respect to

          7  our focus on children K3. I think the iron rule

          8  should be no child leaves the third grade below

          9  grade level. Every child, by the time we get to the

         10  fourth grade should be at grade level.

         11                 Most folks across the country who

         12  have tried to think seriously and deeply about a

         13  promotional policy, have always thought that it

         14  should be phased in, that it is gradually done over

         15  some period of time as we accrued some experience

         16  with doing it.

         17                 We haven't chosen to do that in New

         18  York City. We have chosen to implement it all at one

         19  time, children in grade three through 12. The cost,

         20  I think is prohibitive. I also think the impact on

         21  the system managerially and the infrastructure of

         22  the system is also going to be prohibitive.

         23                 One of the most startling things

         24  about the policy and the regulation as they now

         25  stand, is that at the time that we passed this as a
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          2  member of the Board of Education, there was no

          3  fiscal policy, no alignment with the fiscal policy.

          4  There was no fiscal model, there was no answer to

          5  the questions where are the dollars going to come

          6  from to support this initiative.

          7                 And you should all know that in my

          8  experience, any time you have crafted a policy, any

          9  time you craft a policy there is some associated

         10  costs. There is associated costs with this policy.

         11  Now, the question really is where is the money

         12  coming from and can we sustain the money?

         13                 Mostly what I have been advised and

         14  what I have read is that the Governor and the Mayor

         15  have promised to make some money available, and I

         16  think those are good promises, I wouldn't dream of

         17  arguing against their good intentions, but these are

         18  transitional officials, they are elected officials,

         19  they won't be there in perpetuity.

         20                 As I read state regulations, and as I

         21  understand the City budget, this program is not

         22  fundable with tax levy dollars, and is not fundable

         23  with state aid. Now, I stand to be corrected on

         24  this, but I have read carefully both provisions, and

         25  it seems to me there is no state aid available to
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          2  support this activity and the local tax levy dollars

          3  also don't support it.

          4                 Which means ultimately that the

          5  program gets funded by what we call categorical

          6  money. Which means that it is specifically targeted

          7  to this one sort of activity and at some point it

          8  could go away, be wiped off the table.

          9                 This is a long-standing policy with

         10  long-standing consequences. The funding for it has

         11  to be sustained and predictable. We have to know it

         12  is going to be there way down the line in order to

         13  get the real effect out of it.

         14                 I come from a bit of a research

         15  experience. And I am frankly a little bit surprised

         16  that the policy as it now stands, in my judgment,

         17  ignores a bunch of research about retention, and I

         18  will just give you one example of what the research

         19  says.

         20                 In fact, I think I have passed out a

         21  little bit of a newsletter that at your leisure you

         22  can look at, that talks about some of the research

         23  and what people are thinking about it.

         24                 One of the things that we think we

         25  know about retention programs that are holding
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          2  children back, tell us that the children who are

          3  held back never really catch up with the children

          4  who go forward. So, let me give you an example of

          5  what that means.

          6                 Two children. Both of them marginal,

          7  that is not really strong, but one child gets

          8  promoted to the fourth grade, one child is held back

          9  in the third grade. What the research seems to be

         10  telling us is that the child in the third grade that

         11  has been retained never catches up with his peer,

         12  even though he or she is being given the extra time.

         13  Now, there are all kinds of research about this, and

         14  there are some, of course, that dispute this

         15  research. But the overwhelming number of the

         16  research articles and studies that have been done in

         17  retention suggest that children who are held back

         18  don't really make the gains to catch up and really

         19  get back on par with the children that are their

         20  peers.

         21                 I will say just a couple of other

         22  things and I will close and open myself up to

         23  criticism and questions and anything else you want

         24  to do to me. Just don't throw anything. Throwing

         25  things is not allowed. Not allowed.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Now, why would

          3  one want to criticize you, if your philosophy you

          4  are giving is important?

          5                 DR. HAMER: All you have to do is read

          6  New York Post, Councilwoman. They found good reason

          7  to do that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Well, you know

          9  whatever I say is going to be right here.

         10                 DR. HAMER: Okay, thank you very much.

         11                 What particularly is another very

         12  important thing to me, despite the research that I

         13  think is important to be considered and included in

         14  such a policy is that an organization like the Board

         15  of Education has to reorganize itself in order to

         16  mount an initiative this large. So there ought to be

         17  some structural reorganization in order to implement

         18  and support this policy going forward. That takes

         19  the form of who the people are that are going to

         20  manage it, who are going to oversee it, who is going

         21  to make sure they are being fairly administered and

         22  like that?

         23                 Without such a reorganization, it is

         24  very hard to imagine how the program is going to be

         25  administered.
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          2                 One other thing that I would like to

          3  sort of say. I think the program ought to focus on

          4  the children in the lowest quartiles in reading and

          5  mathematics. We now know who those young people are,

          6  and we know who needs the help and needs the work.

          7  They are the same people who are likely to be held

          8  back.

          9                 The remedial support that these young

         10  people need must be guaranteed. We know who they

         11  are, we know what their test scores are, we know

         12  what their performance is, we cannot mount a program

         13  of this kind without guaranteeing the remedial

         14  support that they need, and at this moment, now as

         15  my understanding may be, I don't think we can

         16  guarantee all of the real supports for all the

         17  children who need them in order to sort of get them

         18  up to steam and on grade level.

         19                 Now, I want to be very clear with

         20  this group. I am not an advocate for social

         21  promotion. I think social promotion is a hoax. It

         22  has been a hoax for a long time. Children promoted

         23  and graduated from public school unable to read,

         24  calculate and write, is a hoax. It is a sham. It is

         25  a bad, bad, bad thing. I want to be as clear as I
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          2  possibly can about that.

          3                 I also think that holding children

          4  back without guaranteeing them basic support, basic

          5  remediation, a basic structure to get the benefit

          6  out of the system is equally a hoax.

          7                 I think in order to do this right we

          8  have to stop playing what I call the shell game and

          9  moving the P around and really do the structural

         10  overhaul that we really need to do in order to

         11  deliver a meaningful experience to the children who

         12  most need it.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Thank you very

         15  much. I am going to ask my colleagues if they would

         16  be prepared to ask the speaker one question because

         17  this is going to be a long hearing, and if you have

         18  any additional questions in your mind, either jot

         19  them down or we will revisit this issue again. It

         20  may not be the time to get all that we are looking

         21  for, but I want to raise the question because you

         22  went right into what -- the political part of funds,

         23  et cetera, I don't know if all of my colleagues were

         24  available, but I do know Wendell Foster were when we

         25  had a hearing on social promotion in Brooklyn Tech;
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          2  do you remember that, Council Member Foster?

          3                 Council Member Fiala, weren't you

          4  there? I think you just came into the Council. This

          5  Committee raised questions that it is related to

          6  teacher training, am I correct? How this was going

          7  to be funded, what was needed in order for us to

          8  pull this off, what was needed, in essence, from

          9  this Committee who represents the City Council, what

         10  could we do to be in a position to help to make this

         11  happen, and I don't know if any of my colleagues

         12  have received any kind of response back, I didn't. I

         13  was given certain things when it is time to

         14  negotiate the budget to carry on education, and I

         15  think this Committee has done a good job in making

         16  sure that it happens.

         17                 But let me say to you, I think one of

         18  the things that we were concerned about, so

         19  concerned about, if social promotion were real, so

         20  real until we brought Commissioner Mills down, am I

         21  correct, to ask him questions in this Chamber, as to

         22  the realization of what is expected of our children.

         23  And I won't ever forget what he said. After his

         24  testimony he said it will happen. Now he didn't go

         25  into any detail, but however, let's back up a little
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          2  bit. Promotion and testing and all of this, was done

          3  in conjunction with the State Education Department;

          4  am I correct?

          5                 Hello? Can anybody correct that for

          6  me.

          7                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: (Not

          8  identified for the record.) No, you are correct in

          9  that the Board of Regents sets the graduation

         10  requirements from high school, correct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Secondly, in

         12  itself that we were given a mandate by the Board of

         13  Regents to come up with a policy that would embrace

         14  the children of this City. I think those are the

         15  times when we begin to talk about mandates, if we

         16  could follow them, but he did tell us it would

         17  happen.

         18                 Now, funds as it is related to making

         19  that realized, because I believe and I raise the

         20  question, if we don't help our teachers to upgrade

         21  themselves for this high standard of excellence that

         22  we are talking about, how can we make sure or make

         23  or hold our kids hostage to meeting those mandates?

         24                 I never got a response. I never got

         25  correspondence that said Priscilla you have to carry
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          2  X amount of dollars in the Education Committee. And

          3  my colleagues, I want you to correct me, if I am

          4  wrong, because I never got that direction.

          5                 However, there is a lot that we could

          6  talk about what should have happened? You, as a

          7  representative of the Board of Education, you know,

          8  I challenge everybody who say they are for kids, we

          9  need to come to the table. All of those people who

         10  play a very important role in the implementation of

         11  the children of this City should be on record as

         12  sitting down and talking about how we are going to

         13  move forward. If the City of New York is going to be

         14  held accountable for the funding that is necessary

         15  to implement, then we are going to have to turn to

         16  our colleagues in this state and say hold on a

         17  minute. You have given us a mandate, I don't know if

         18  we can provide the funds unless we collectively get

         19  together to address the issue. And that is what I am

         20  talking about every day, and sometimes I don't even

         21  read the paper because this talks about blame,

         22  blame, and every time I read about the blame, I get

         23  nervous because I want to know what is going to

         24  happen to little DJ, my youngest grandson. By the

         25  time everybody stops criticizing, let's put some of
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          2  the criticism into realization, and right now I am

          3  challenging you as a member of the Board of

          4  Education, the representative of the Chancellor,

          5  before I escape into retirement, challenge me to

          6  come to the table and sit down and talk about what

          7  our concerns are.

          8                 Not for show, not show and tell. I am

          9  talking about we need to sit at the table to tell

         10  each other exactly how we feel about what we are

         11  doing and why it should not happen.

         12                 I don't know, maybe the Board of

         13  Education could come up with another measure of

         14  excellence, to come together to deal with it,

         15  whatever is mandated by us from the state, or maybe

         16  what we need to do is stop scaring children half to

         17  death about taking the test. Everything -- adults

         18  are not able to take a test, that children can be in

         19  the position to be trained, to be tested without

         20  them knowing that they are being tested, or worrying

         21  about don't you look back at Jane because you are

         22  copying from Jane or John, and these are the kind of

         23  issues that we need to deal with.

         24                 I know no other way, and I didn't

         25  have this hearing to criticize anyone, Doctor, my
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          2  concept is to hear today what the Board of Education

          3  has in mind.

          4                 I am sure that if you did a

          5  presentation to them, like you did to us today, this

          6  is nothing new for them. But I do believe that there

          7  should be a consensus on how we all feel about

          8  bringing one object together and that is in the best

          9  interest of the children of the City of New York.

         10  That is the main issue that we should be addressing.

         11  And my concept, once we hear that today, that each

         12  and every one who impacts on children positive, are

         13  going to be in a position to sit down and talk about

         14  it. Because I have a lot of issues. I have a lot of

         15  issues as to how parents are used in this system, I

         16  have a lot of issues on teacher training, I have a

         17  lot of issues on this whole gamut of social

         18  promotion as it relates to a child being 12 years

         19  old and in the third grade. I have problems with

         20  that because socially that child is put in a

         21  different category, and that category is not one to

         22  uplift but to bring down.

         23                 These are the kinds of things that we

         24  need to address. You need not respond to me unless

         25  it is important, but I am going to move this on to
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          2  some of my colleagues, maybe they have more

          3  straightforward kinds of questions and expect

          4  answers, but I hope that we move rapidly along so

          5  that we would be able to get as much as we possibly

          6  can from this hearing.

          7                 Council Member Nelson.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Well, Dr.

          9  Hamer, for all that comrades and arms for

         10  educational improvement in our lifetime, hopefully.

         11  So, you are saying basically that you were handed an

         12  unfunded mandate?

         13                 DR. HAMER: I think it comes down like

         14  that, yes. There have been a few of those in the

         15  history of the City and the state, as a matter of

         16  fact.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Sort of like a

         18  categorical arena that you were able to -- which

         19  area were you able to make up this loss of funding?

         20                 DR. HAMER: I am not sure, maybe Mr.

         21  Spence or Dr. Rizzo can answer that question. But I

         22  know I did raise the question about the financial

         23  model for the policy and the funding stream, and at

         24  the time that this was an issue, at the time that

         25  this vote took place, there was no clarity about how
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          2  it was going to be funded. There were promises,

          3  however, from elected officials that support would

          4  be forthcoming.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Okay. Do you

          6  have a special --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: We are going to

          8  have to start naming these elected officials. I fall

          9  in the category.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Name names.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: And if you are

         12  not able to name that elected official, then I have

         13  problems.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: It sounds to

         15  McCarthy for me but --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Council Member,

         17  only one question each, I am sorry.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Can I just get

         19  this one statement in? Hopefully we are going to be

         20  prepared for next year with proper management, some

         21  of the experience, so we don't make the same

         22  mistakes and have a projected cost for next year so

         23  we can go to bat to see what you will need from the

         24  Council end of it. And also I think one of the major

         25  items here, as far as an education, is we don't pay
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          2  our teachers a decent wage and our supervisors and

          3  get more --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: I am not going to

          5  have you deviate from my subject. Now, I asked for

          6  one question, we are going to have to move on.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Okay. Those

          8  are the key issues, Madam Chair, for education I

          9  think.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Council Member

         12  Malave-Dilan.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN: Thank

         14  you very much, Madam Chairperson.

         15                 You know, I have a problem in terms

         16  of every time we talked about funding and new

         17  funding, you know, I always thought that the job of

         18  the Board of Education was to educate our children.

         19                 In your testimony you indicate that

         20  children can be held back as many as five times and

         21  then you have a problem with social promotion and

         22  with the current policy that the Board implemented,

         23  and let's say if a child is held back four to five,

         24  or even once, I mean, what is the Board of Education

         25  doing to do a specialized program for this child?
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          2  Isn't the money there already? Couldn't we structure

          3  a program for these students and put them along that

          4  track? I mean, what is wrong?

          5                 Many times there is money within the

          6  Board of Education that is not spent at all, how do

          7  we answer that question?

          8                 DR. HAMER: I think you make an

          9  important observation, Councilman. I will say again

         10  that I think if we are to have a retention program

         11  or a promotional policy that has in it retention

         12  that is holding children back, I will say to you

         13  that costs money, and the money that we currently

         14  have available is money that pays for children that

         15  are on the regular routine, the regular schedule of

         16  moving through the system.

         17                 It is like going to college, everyone

         18  in this room has done some college work. If you had

         19  to take a course in calculus, as some of us have

         20  done, and some of us have failed the course in

         21  calculus, and we have to take the course again in

         22  order to graduate, you pay. You pay.

         23                 If you hold a child back in the third

         24  grade, in order to repeat the third grade, it costs

         25  money. Not in the regular budget. The regular budget
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          2  is organized to pay for that child moving from the

          3  system sequentially. The child has to stop and do

          4  something over again, we have to figure out how to

          5  support that, and in a system this large, with

          6  potentially the number of young people who are

          7  likely to be held back, that is a big number.

          8                 Now, I don't know the number, we

          9  haven't figured that out yet in my head, I don't

         10  know what it is going to cost, but I can tell you

         11  categorically as a fairly senior manager, I know it

         12  is going to cost money. And it doesn't exist in the

         13  existing budget.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN: Thank

         15  you, Madam Chairperson.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: I just want to

         17  emphasize that being that we get a lot of budget

         18  modification in front of us, I want to ask you, are

         19  you in the position to review those modifications?

         20                 DR. HAMER: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: You had indicated

         22  that there is not enough money, in reviewing those

         23  budget modifications have you come to a resolve that

         24  maybe you could take some of those categories and

         25  recommendations to the Board of Education that it
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          2  might be switching a category that would enhance

          3  what we are talking about today?

          4                 DR. HAMER: Well, I think you can play

          5  the Peter to pay Paul game. I think that is

          6  possible. A lot of us do that. We do that at home,

          7  we do that in City government, we do that in some

          8  corporations, but at least borrow from Peter to pay

          9  Paul, and when you do that something else

         10  diminishes, right? When you take it from one

         11  category, it means that some other category at one

         12  point we thought was important is no longer

         13  important, we now have to pay this price. I don't

         14  think that is the real way to do it.

         15                 I think that the way to do it is to

         16  really create a financial model that says this is

         17  what it is going to cost to have the kind of

         18  promotional policy and retention program that we

         19  have.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: My concept, for

         21  identification, is removing it from one need, one

         22  less need to another need.

         23                 DR. HAMER: I understand.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: So, I don't want

         25  to get in that cross category of trying to decide,
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          2  but it would seem to me that we would be in a

          3  position to, number one, know how much money it is

          4  going to cost because we know how many children that

          5  are in this system that are failing, and number two,

          6  I would like to see something come to this New York

          7  City Council, this Education Committee, and have us

          8  talk about it, and that we will move it into

          9  discussion of funds, rather than come to a resolve

         10  that, you know, I am making this kind of allegation

         11  and that nothing is going to happen, I am

         12  challenging you today, Doctor, that whatever you

         13  have given us today, that if you would put it in a

         14  proposal form during budget discussion and give it

         15  to me in my hands, I will come back and I will even

         16  go a step further. I will name the elected officials

         17  who make promises and they don't keep.

         18                 DR. HAMER: Well, I want to thank you,

         19  Councilwoman, for that challenge. I will take it, I

         20  will see what we can do to respond to it. But I also

         21  want to be very quick to hasten that I don't think

         22  that this policy is all about just money. There are

         23  other things I try to eliminate as I went through my

         24  testimony, I do think that money is a big part of

         25  it, but there are other sort of pedagogical issues
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          2  that are equally important and powerful.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Well, I don't

          4  know that one, but we will deal with that one later.

          5                 Council Member Linares.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Thank you,

          7  Madam Chair.

          8                 Dr. Hamer, I really appreciate your

          9  presentation in how candid you were in your

         10  presentation. I share many of those concerns. When

         11  you have a school system of this magnitude, this

         12  dimension and you approach to do something large

         13  scale rather quick, sometimes in response to

         14  political pressure, other times because there may be

         15  circumstances that are pushing and putting pressure

         16  on the public school system, and sometimes the

         17  intent is to seek to privatize public education. And

         18  there are a different type of pressure applied, and

         19  also the pressure that we are not really producing

         20  the results that we all wish with our students.

         21                 But I think that greatest tragedy, I

         22  think we should assess very careful what happened

         23  this summer and how the whole thing was put in place

         24  to see what lessons we would learn, because the

         25  gravest mistake that we can make is to try to pull
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          2  something together quick, and in the end we may end

          3  up hurting those that we are seeking to help, those

          4  other students, and those other parents that go

          5  through anxieties unnecessarily which I am sure was

          6  the case for thousands of them this summer. And I

          7  heard when you mentioned that the approach, we are

          8  trying to fix, the danger is trying to fix quickly

          9  something that needs thorough reflection and

         10  planning and to strike a balance between what you

         11  are planning to do, how much it costs, as you

         12  indicated. This is a very complex situation that we

         13  must face and requires the leadership to be patient

         14  but at the same time prepare to commit with the

         15  resources that are necessary.

         16                 One of the things that in my role as

         17  Vice Chair of the White House Initiative for

         18  Educational Excellence of Hispanic-Americans is to

         19  address this particular issue of standards and

         20  assessment and how do we deal with it, and I have

         21  something to share with you that perhaps can shed

         22  some light or put in perspective, at least for

         23  Hispanic Americans, which face the same challenges

         24  as every child in this country or in this City and I

         25  have a document that was just produced, it was just
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          2  published two weeks ago in Washington, D.C., and it

          3  is called Testing of Hispanic Students of the United

          4  States, An Action Agenda, and there is a lot of

          5  background information pertinent to what we are

          6  discussing here. I had mentioned to you a couple of

          7  days ago that I will share that with you. I have

          8  another copy for the Chancellor and Deputy

          9  Chancellor. Feel free to copy this, share it with

         10  your colleagues, and I think it will help us in

         11  pushing, continuing with the dialogue that we must

         12  continue to have both on this side and on your side.

         13                 Here is another one. The question

         14  that I have is, do you know how many children were

         15  impacted and were -- perhaps this is more

         16  appropriate for the Deputy Chancellor -- but do you

         17  know how many children were inappropriately

         18  designated to participate in summer programs when

         19  they really didn't have to and how many were not

         20  able to go through the appropriate grade in

         21  September as a result of how things were implemented

         22  this summer?

         23                 DR. HAMER: Yes, it is a very good

         24  question. Thank you very much for both your comments

         25  and your question and these materials. I assure you
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          2  I will pay very careful attention to these

          3  materials. I will read them and I will have a

          4  conversation with you about the contents of them.

          5                 I have been very well briefed by the

          6  staff, the Chancellor and his senior staff about the

          7  error of the summer calibration, the calibration of

          8  the summer test scores and the resulting retention

          9  or the resulting mandatory summer school experience.

         10                 I feel very confident about the

         11  numbers, however I think it more appropriate to

         12  either have Dr. Rizzo or Mr. Spence speak to those

         13  numbers.

         14                 I am confident both about the

         15  methodology that they use to track this problem, I

         16  thoroughly understand the problem of the calibration

         17  of the error that happened with the tests, I

         18  understand how it can happen. For me the fundamental

         19  issue about the test and the calibration has more to

         20  do with the nature of the contract that we crafted

         21  with the test provider, we had no way of really

         22  checking the test provider's work, and I am hopeful

         23  that the system going forward will correct that

         24  situation so that the extraordinary statistical and

         25  psychometric staff that we do have in the future
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          2  will be able to do its own quality control review of

          3  the test results and not have to rely upon the test

          4  manufacturer, the person or the organization

          5  administering the exam. That to me is the

          6  fundamental problem.

          7                 The net effect of disrupting

          8  children's lives, families' lives, holding children

          9  back really is a major, major concern. I do think

         10  the system has a good handle on who has been

         11  affected and is absolutely in the process of trying

         12  to do some corrective action with respect to those

         13  young people. I am sure Dr. Rizzo or Dr. Spence will

         14  be able to give you those details a lot more

         15  succinctly than I am.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: We have been

         18  joined by Councilwoman Pinkett, Councilwoman

         19  Koslowitz, and Councilman Rodriguez, Brooklyn and

         20  Queens.

         21                 Also, in the audience I note the Vice

         22  President of the Board of Education, Dr. Irene

         23  Impellizeri. We are glad you are here.

         24                 I just want to reemphasize the need

         25  for us to move along, if we could just make our
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          2  questions a little shorter, and make our answers a

          3  little shorter, if you may.

          4                 Council Member Fiala.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Dr. Hamer,

          6  welcome. I think you made some very salient points.

          7  I want to say I agree with the Chairwoman's

          8  assessment with respect to the state's negligence in

          9  coming up with the aid needed to phase this thing

         10  in.

         11                 I want to ask you, because you raised

         12  it by my count three times, you talked about the

         13  need for structural overhaul or reorganizing. My

         14  opinions on this subject in this room I think are

         15  well known, everybody knows where I stand in terms

         16  of the Board of Ed and the need for restructuring.

         17  What do you mean when you say structural? Because

         18  you said money is part of it, and structure is

         19  another. Could you tell us?

         20                 DR. HAMER: Yes, I think I am fairly

         21  clear. If you are asking me exactly what the

         22  structure change should be, I am not prepared to

         23  answer that. But I do know that we have a High

         24  School Division at the Board of Education, its

         25  primary purpose in life is to guide and manage the
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          2  high schools for the City of New York.

          3                 We have a Fiscal Department at the

          4  Board of Education responsible for managing, for

          5  constructing and managing the budgets and overseeing

          6  the expense of the Board of Education. So, I can say

          7  to you that we have an organization that has a

          8  variety of departments dedicated to specific and

          9  detailed functions.

         10                 This policy, given its scope and its

         11  size, the potential number of children to be

         12  affected by it, the coordination that has to happen

         13  from the Central Board of Education with the various

         14  boroughs, the districts within the boroughs, and the

         15  schools within those districts requires what I call

         16  an infrastructure. It requires people to actually

         17  manage and make sure that what is supposed to happen

         18  is happening.

         19                 When you create a set of rules like

         20  this, and you don't have a structural provision to

         21  manage the situation, what you can is an awful lot

         22  of confusion and an awful lot of what I call

         23  double-dipping, doing the work twice or three times

         24  in some cases, because you didn't get it right the

         25  first time. And without constructing an
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          2  organizational capacity to manage this project, what

          3  we have done is create the possibility of continued

          4  confusion and some degree of chaos.

          5                 Now, that again costs money, right? I

          6  mean, the real question is who are the people within

          7  the system that have been dedicated to manage and

          8  run this program, what Department is going to do

          9  this? And are they there just for this year or are

         10  they there for the long haul?

         11                 Now, it sounds like more bureaucracy.

         12  In some ways it is that, right? But you can't make a

         13  set of rules without creating an organizational

         14  capacity to respond to it. That is what I mean.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Council Member

         16  Carrion. And then Council Member Foster.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Thank you,

         18  Madam Chair.

         19                 Dr. Hamer, I guess Council Member

         20  Fiala either read my mind or my notes, or we are on

         21  the same page. I was going to ask you about the

         22  structural reorganization of what you meant by that

         23  because you talk about the fact that it is

         24  incoherent, the disconnect between policy and

         25  regulation, the disconnect between the Central Board
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          2  and the local district in the implementation. Since

          3  you answered some of that, I will just take the

          4  privileges of the mic and go back to one of the

          5  terms you used which I certainly agree with, that

          6  this is a perpetration of a hoax, and that there is

          7  a long history, if I may, Madam Chair, there is a

          8  long history of these hoaxes that are used

          9  politically as political footballs to essentially

         10  give candy to people.

         11                 I gave a speech last night on

         12  education at a local group in the Bronx and I

         13  touched on the latest two hoaxes besides this one,

         14  which is vouchers, that were going to touch 3,000

         15  children in a 1.1 million student system, school

         16  vouchers, and an affirmative action program

         17  essentially for parochial schools.

         18                 And two, the charter schools, where

         19  each of us has about 20 some odd schools in our

         20  districts, we would be lucky to get one school. And

         21  now once again we are insincere in our approach I

         22  think to really looking at the structural

         23  difficulties in a massive school system. I think

         24  that in order for us to achieve what we have to

         25  achieve, we ought to be giving the resources. I am
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          2  speechifying, let me stop. Thank you, Dr. Hamer.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Council Member

          4  Foster.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Thank you,

          6  Madam Chairwoman.

          7                 Dr. Hamer, thank you for your

          8  testimony. I am sorry I am late getting here.

          9                 I talked with a physician over the

         10  weekend last week and he told me about his brother

         11  in law, he is such a skilled physician that he goes

         12  all over the world to perform operations. I said so?

         13  He said the fact is he is not certified. A test does

         14  not true your ability or lack of ability.

         15                 I grew up in a segregated state,

         16  taught in a segregated state called North Carolina,

         17  and they had something there called certification

         18  and qualification, they need not be the same. Most

         19  of our teachers who taught in these one-room

         20  segregated schools were qualified but never

         21  certified and yet the students learned.

         22                 As much as I believe in tests,

         23  sometimes I think we put too much emphasis on that.

         24  The question that I have is, did the same teachers

         25  these kids failed under, were they the same ones
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          2  that taught them during the summer months? If so, I

          3  have something that I would like to say.

          4                 We run an after school program at our

          5  church and a summer school program for teaching

          6  kids. Every student that we had in that school

          7  program during the summer passed that test. Not with

          8  certified teachers, but with qualified teachers.

          9  Something is wrong somewhere. So, if the same

         10  teachers are teaching the same students, I think the

         11  headlines ought to talk about the teachers sometimes

         12  other than the students.

         13                 DR. HAMER: Councilman, you are making

         14  a very important and very, very, very powerful

         15  point. My judgment is that the children who have the

         16  greatest need ought to have access to the best

         17  schools that the system has to offer. I love your

         18  distinction between qualified and certified, the

         19  most qualified teachers to work with the children

         20  who have the greatest need ought to be in the

         21  classrooms in summer school. I want to push that

         22  envelope a little bit further, sir, if I might.

         23                 I think we know who the least

         24  performing children are. We don't direct our best

         25  toward those young people during the regular course
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          2  of the school year. I think even during the regular

          3  school year, the children who have the greatest need

          4  ought to get the best schools, ought to have the

          5  most qualified teachers, in order to give them the

          6  best shot of achieving what it is they need to

          7  achieve.

          8                 That takes an awful lot of

          9  coordination, reorganization, a bunch of support,

         10  some real clarity about what it is that we get done.

         11  And I want to say that even though my testimony and

         12  my vote appear to be oppositional to the system and

         13  to my colleagues on the board, I am increasingly

         14  confident that there is some empathy for what it is

         15  that I have tried to say here today, both among the

         16  two deputies that are here and the Chancellor, and I

         17  am quick to sort of self describe as an outlyer, I

         18  talk mostly from my gut and not so much from my

         19  head. So, there is a lot that I have said that

         20  represents passion. I have tried to be discerning, I

         21  have tried to be thoughtful about it, but I think

         22  you are right on mark. There is no point in the

         23  retention program, there is not point in holding

         24  children back, if they are going to the same school

         25  and the same classroom.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: And the same

          3  teachers.

          4                 DR. HAMER: And the same teachers.

          5  There is no point.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: I would

          7  suggest, sir, that they should test the teachers as

          8  well.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Council

         12  Member Koslowitz.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: I would

         14  like to know, who much did this summer school

         15  program cost?

         16                 DR. HAMER: Well, I saw some early

         17  estimates. I don't think I have seen the actual

         18  outcome, but I think the early estimates were

         19  somewhere between 80 and 90 million.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: Eighty to

         21  90 million?

         22                 DR. HAMER: Yes, that was the early

         23  estimate. I have not seen the actual expense report,

         24  but back in the spring when we were going into it, I

         25  thought that was about what it was going to cost.
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          2                 (Speaking to staff) am I in the ball

          3  park? You think it is more.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: And where

          5  would this money come from? This summer program.

          6                 DR. HAMER: I think you should ask

          7  that question of the Deputy Chancellor Spence or Dr.

          8  Rizzo.

          9                 I mean, I do know that I saw the

         10  early forecasts for what it was going to cost, and a

         11  way by which to fund it was sort of identified for

         12  this past summer.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: Okay,

         14  because I have a problem with how this whole thing,

         15  you know, was handled, you know, this summer, and my

         16  concern of course is for the children, and what the

         17  long range consequence is going to be on the

         18  children, you know, to do something that certainly

         19  was not planned out. You know, it was just something

         20  that happened and they went to summer school and it

         21  was like putting a bandaid on one problem but maybe,

         22  you know, the problem has a great potential for

         23  becoming a very big infection.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: I believe
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          2  the next speaker is Judith Rizzo.

          3                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Thank you,

          4  Council Member Pinkett. I am joined here by Harry

          5  Spence, Deputy Chancellor for Operations. And my

          6  name is Judith Rizzo, Deputy Chancellor for

          7  Curriculum Instruction, and we have several staff

          8  members who I will introduce a little bit later.

          9                 As requested in the past, we have

         10  prepared a short formal statement to enter into the

         11  record, which you all have in front of you, and then

         12  with your indulgence we will give you very specific

         13  information about summer school, about the corrected

         14  test scores and the ramifications of those and about

         15  the promotion policy so that you can be well

         16  informed with the reality of what all of those

         17  issues is.

         18                 But let me begin with the statement

         19  that we have prepared, which I believe you have in

         20  front of you.

         21                 Good afternoon, honorable Chairperson

         22  Wooten and Council Members, my name is Judith Rizzo,

         23  Deputy Chancellor for Instruction for New York

         24  City's public schools.

         25                 It is my distinct pleasure to be here
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          2  this afternoon to discuss with you our new promotion

          3  policy for students in grades three to 12, which is

          4  adopted by the Board of Education on September 8th,

          5  1999. Today I will review with you three topics:

          6                 One, I would like to provide you with

          7  updated information about the City's reading

          8  achievements.

          9                 Two, I would like to review what the

         10  Chancellor has been doing to build system capacity

         11  in preparation for the implementation of our new

         12  promotion policy.

         13                 Third, I would like to share with you

         14  the major components of our new promotion policy for

         15  students in grades three to 12 and discuss how this

         16  policy differs from past practice.

         17                 This is the third year in a row that

         18  our system has experienced significant reading

         19  achievement gains. You may remember that last spring

         20  Deputy Chancellor Harry Spence and members of my

         21  instructional staff shared with you the results of

         22  the spring Citywide reading tests. Today we provide

         23  you with new information about those results due to

         24  a recently announced CTB McGraw-Hill scoring error

         25  on the citywide tests.
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          2                 While we were dismayed by the error,

          3  and its obvious impact on our students, parents and

          4  staff, we were delighted to learn, as we have

          5  believed all along, that our students had made

          6  outstanding progress in reading achievement.

          7                 Our students in grades 3, 5, 6 and 7

          8  achieved a 4.9 percentage point gain on the

          9  City-wide reading tests, the largest single year

         10  gain in over a decade. 48.5 percent of our

         11  youngsters in those grades scored at or above the

         12  national average approaching the national average of

         13  the 50th percentile.

         14                 We have been able to make such

         15  significant gains because we have been creating a

         16  performance-driven system focused on high standards

         17  and building the capacity of our system to support

         18  student success for a number of years now.

         19                 Over the last two years we have

         20  adopted systemwide performance standards in language

         21  arts, mathematics and science, and will adopt

         22  standards for applied learning this coming school

         23  year.

         24                 These standards are based on the

         25  rigorous standards developed by the nationally
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          2  recognized New Standards project and have been

          3  customized for New York City students.

          4                 The State Education Department has

          5  also adopted new demanding graduation requirements,

          6  whereby students must pass Regents examinations in

          7  English, mathematics, global history, US history,

          8  and science.

          9                 In conjunction with the dissemination

         10  of the performance standards, the Chancellor has

         11  been building the capacity of the system to ensure

         12  student success.

         13                 Some of the things we have been doing

         14  to build system capacity include:

         15                 - comprehensive district and school

         16  planning to ensure that all students receive quality

         17  instruction at their appropriate grade levels.

         18                 - focused professional development

         19  linked explicitly to the performance standards.

         20                 - the ongoing alignment of state and

         21  city assessments with the performance standards.

         22                 - the Early Childhood Literacy

         23  Assessment System to provide teachers with

         24  information about student progress and instructional

         25  effectiveness in the critical early years.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 - central initiatives, such as

          3  Project Read, Project Arts and Project Smart to

          4  promote early literacy instruction, arts education

          5  and technology-supported instruction.

          6                 - early grade class size reduction.

          7                 - special education reforms that

          8  promote a seamless and unified educational system.

          9                 - the selection of 11 development and

         10  dissemination schools to document effective programs

         11  and practices that support high achievement by

         12  English language learners.

         13                 - Intensive instructional supports at

         14  the high school level to ensure success in the

         15  Regents requirements.

         16                 - expansion of the school day, week

         17  and year to after school programs, Saturday

         18  academies, break-aways and summer school.

         19                 Summer school has been an important

         20  opportunity for us to focus attention on those

         21  youngsters who need additional time and intensive

         22  support to reach the higher standards.

         23                 This past summer, over 228,000

         24  students from K to 12 were able to take advantage of

         25  this opportunity. You may remember that in the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            52

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  summer of 1998, we doubled the number of students

          3  served in kindergarten to grade 8 to just over

          4  105,000, and for this past summer, we have increased

          5  that number to almost 120,000.

          6                 As a corollary to establishing high

          7  standards for students and building system capacity

          8  to support student success, we have now clearly

          9  defined standards for promotion from grade to grade.

         10                 That process has included ongoing

         11  consultations with students, parents, school and

         12  district staff, community school board members, as

         13  well as union, community, university and business

         14  leaders. We also formed an Advisory Committee on

         15  Promotion Standards that has been instrumental in

         16  helping us to revise the promotion standards and to

         17  guide their successful implementation throughout our

         18  schools.

         19                 The promotion policy is designed to

         20  establish systemwide benchmarks for high standards

         21  work at each grade level. In this way, school staff

         22  across the system will be holding all students to

         23  the same high standards and will be recognizing

         24  students who accomplish such work through promotion

         25  to the next grade level.
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          2                 We need to provide rigorous academic

          3  preparation to our students throughout their school

          4  career so that they can meet the new, more demanding

          5  state graduation requirements and ultimately succeed

          6  in our highly competitive economy.

          7                 Our students deserve to be held to

          8  high standards consistently. They should expect that

          9  their promotion from one grade to the next is

         10  meaningful and will enable them to achieve at

         11  progressively higher levels.

         12                 The establishment of systemwide

         13  promotion standards from grades three to twelve will

         14  deliver a unified message to the entire school

         15  community about the important responsibility that

         16  all school staff, parents and community members have

         17  in ensuring that all students achieve at the highest

         18  levels.

         19                 Decisions on promotion will reflect

         20  the Chancellor's focus on systemwide performance

         21  standards and will be based on multiple criteria.

         22  The multiple criteria will consist of student work

         23  and grades, citywide and state assessments and

         24  attendance. Promotion decisions will be based on a

         25  comprehensive assessment of all of these criteria.
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          2                 The Chancellor is also committed to

          3  instituting an early warning system, which includes

          4  ongoing classroom assessment, early instructional

          5  interventions and appropriate and timely parent

          6  notification, to ensure that all adults have focused

          7  on student progress and the need for adequate

          8  support to help students meet the standards.

          9                 Parents must be integral partners in

         10  the education of their children. As such, parents

         11  must understand the levels of achievement necessary

         12  for promotion and be informed if their child needs

         13  intervention to succeed.

         14                 Districts and schools may provide

         15  these instructional interventions as part of the

         16  school day year, in after school or summer programs

         17  and/or in specially designed district or school

         18  settings.

         19                 Students who do not meet promotion

         20  standards at the end of the school year will attend

         21  summer school and will be evaluated at the end of

         22  summer to determine whether they have met the

         23  criteria for promotion.

         24                 The Chancellor is committed to

         25  ensuring that all of our resources support an early
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          2  warning system with particular focus on preventive

          3  measures to ensure that students have every

          4  opportunity to excel.

          5                 These measures include instructional

          6  intervention for students, and focused professional

          7  development for school-based staff and parent

          8  leadership. Our students' success hinges on the

          9  quality of teaching in each and every classroom and

         10  excellent teaching requires ongoing, focused

         11  professional development.

         12                 Honorable Chairperson Wooten and

         13  members of the City Council, I thank you for the

         14  opportunity to be here and share with you the

         15  remarkable reading achievements of our students in

         16  the last school year and provide you an overview on

         17  our new promotion policy.

         18                 I also thank you for your ongoing

         19  support and for your interest in helping all of our

         20  city's public school students achieve at the highest

         21  levels.

         22                 And we have two staff members with us

         23  today, in particular, whom you met last time when

         24  Harry was here to present in my absence, Bob Tobias

         25  and Bill Casey.
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          2                 I have asked Bob to give you some

          3  very specific information on the error that the

          4  testing company made, and the impact of that error

          5  and what we have done to correct that, and Bill to

          6  walk you through briefly all of the pieces of the

          7  promotion policy so that you understand both the

          8  standards, the criteria that we are using, the early

          9  warning system and the provisions that we are making

         10  to make sure that this policy is implemented

         11  appropriately.

         12                 So we will make this brief, but we

         13  feel you need this information so that you can be

         14  better informed about the complexities of these

         15  issues and then we will absolutely be open to

         16  questions.

         17                 Mr. Spence, as you know, is here

         18  because clearly, as you have heard and discussed and

         19  know, this is a very complex issue which is

         20  affecting every single aspect of our school system.

         21  We have a multi-disciplinary team of folks that is

         22  working on this and managing this, that includes all

         23  of the operations side of the house and all of the

         24  program side of the house, because many of the

         25  issues that we are facing in implementing this
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          2  policy have to do with facilities, certainly have to

          3  do with budget, have to do with the hiring of

          4  excellent staff, so this has really brought this

          5  school system together in unison to ensure that

          6  everything that we can possibly do is in place to

          7  ensure the success of these children.

          8                 So, Bob I believe has a power point?

          9                 MR. TOBIAS: Yes, I do.

         10                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Yes, he

         11  does.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: I just want them

         13  to identify themselves for the record.

         14                 MR. TOBIAS: I am Bob Tobias, I am the

         15  Executive Director of Assessment and Accountability

         16  for the Board.

         17                 MR. CASEY: My name is Bill Casey, I

         18  am Chief Executive for Program Development and

         19  Dissemination in the Deputy Chancellor for

         20  Instruction's Office.

         21                 MR. TOBIAS: Good afternoon,

         22  Chairperson Wooten and Council Members. We have put

         23  together a power point presentation to explain to

         24  you exactly what happened in CTBs making the error

         25  on the Citywide reading and mathematics tests, its
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          2  impact on overall system performance, and more

          3  specifically is impact on students --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Excuse me. Can

          5  all of my colleagues see this?

          6                 Can we get someone to do some kind of

          7  adjustment?

          8                 MR. TOBIAS: You have hardcopy.

          9                 Okay, we have put together a power

         10  point presentation that will explain exactly what

         11  error was made by CTB McGraw Hill, its impact on the

         12  overall performance of the system, and more

         13  specifically, its impact on students who were

         14  mandated to go to summer school this year. It also

         15  contains an action plan that we have been

         16  implementing to correct the error and to notify

         17  every parent as to the actual course of the

         18  students.

         19                 First of all, in terms of what has

         20  happened: On Thursday afternoon, September 9th, CTB

         21  informed the Board that it had committed errors in

         22  the calibration of Form B of TerraNova. We had used

         23  many Form B items of TerraNova on last year's

         24  reading and mathematics tests.

         25                 I just want you to know that CTB had
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          2  received a number of requests from us way back last

          3  spring to take a careful look at the technical

          4  information that went into the development of the

          5  test, because we had noticed anomalies, we had

          6  beseeched them several times to make corrections.

          7  They certified that everything was okay, and we

          8  issued the results last June.

          9                 In September they came forward and

         10  told us that they had actually made some errors.

         11                 Now, the errors changed the national

         12  percentile ranks that were received by many of our

         13  students on last spring's reading and mathematics

         14  test. The impact was major in terms of reading and I

         15  am going to focus on the change in the reading

         16  scores, but the error occurred in both reading and

         17  mathematics and affected students' scores in both.

         18                 The error did not affect the scores

         19  of the tests administered in 1998 so that when we

         20  make comparisons between '98 and '99 with the

         21  corrected data, we did not have to go back and make

         22  corrections in '98, those gain scores that we are

         23  going to show you are absolutely accurate.

         24                 And they did not affect the scores of

         25  the tests that the students took in the summer.
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          2                 How did these errors change the 1999

          3  Citywide scores? First of all, when we score the

          4  tests, basically what we do is we scan every

          5  students paper, we determine the number of questions

          6  that the students get correct, and then we use

          7  conversion tables that we get from CTB to convert

          8  the number of questions each child gets correct into

          9  percentile rankings, and it is a national percentile

         10  ranking that we use for judging the performance of

         11  the system and the performance of every student.

         12                 The errors that CTB made were in

         13  those conversion tables that they gave to us for

         14  going from raw scores to national percentile ranks.

         15  In most cases the students needed to answer fewer

         16  questions --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Excuse me. Can

         18  you just clarify what you said, the areas of

         19  corrections within the national percentage rating

         20  that came from their own perceptive?

         21                 MR. TOBIAS: From CTBs.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: All right, were

         23  there any -- I don't know how to phrase this, other

         24  than to say were there anything that would have

         25  given you an indication that something was not
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          2  correct, Judy, when it came to the actual scoring?

          3                 In other words, is there any

          4  guarantee that we have that would flag our attention

          5  that something is not right here so that we would

          6  not be in the position to let it get that far?

          7                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Indeed. When

          8  Bob first came up to my office and shared with me

          9  the preliminary test results we were quite taken

         10  aback, because of all the work we had been doing, we

         11  felt that those scores should have gone up. So we

         12  talked about that, Bob said there are certain

         13  anomalies in these data, this just doesn't make

         14  sense given what we have done.

         15                 So, we talked about that when he went

         16  back and talked to CTB McGraw Hill and said, you

         17  know, this doesn't seem right. There doesn't seem to

         18  be some irregularities here, can you help us with

         19  this, will you look deeper into this, and they said,

         20  yes, we will and called back and said, no,

         21  everything is fine, we did it a second time and I

         22  think actually a third time, and what I am sure you

         23  can relate to is that we were so disappointed at

         24  what was presented to us as not as great a game as

         25  we anticipated given all of the work we had done,
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          2  there was a piece of us saying, maybe we just can't

          3  accept this, maybe we are seeing things that aren't

          4  there because we just find it so hard to believe

          5  these scores have not indeed gone up as high as we

          6  thought they would go. But the company assured us on

          7  several occasions that these scores were fine, and,

          8  remember that the State test is from the same

          9  company, so they reassured and reassured and

         10  reassured so at that point we were then at the point

         11  where we had to go public. We couldn't come out with

         12  scores to the public and say these should have been

         13  higher, we think there is probably something wrong

         14  with these scores, who would have believed that, so

         15  we had to go forward.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: How can one pass

         17  tests? Why should I be comfortable, first of all --

         18  and I want to say this to you, and there is no

         19  reflection on any individual, because right now I am

         20  sure these people get paid a lot of money to do the

         21  right thing.

         22                 I have a little guy that turned 14

         23  yesterday and he is in high school. And I have a

         24  little guy that is 11 that is in junior high school,

         25  how can I be confident that the prior tests that
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          2  they have taken, you know, maybe somebody didn't pay

          3  as close attention, because you know what you had

          4  done with them making the necessary steps for higher

          5  achievement in this area, how can we now be

          6  confident that all of those past tests didn't have

          7  flaws? Because everybody can be vulnerable to

          8  mistakes, but nobody wants to correct them.

          9                 What can we do now when we contract

         10  people to assess a lot of money and a lot of work

         11  and a lot of children and a lot of disappointed

         12  parents, how can we now say to them, if you contract

         13  with us, this is a kind of building protection that

         14  we need in order for us not to make the same

         15  mistake.

         16                 And let me just tell you the reason

         17  why I am saying this. Because people don't like to

         18  correct themselves because they lose money, and I

         19  want to know what are they going to do. Are they

         20  going to give us something that would clarify, it is

         21  not going to make it better but more or less this is

         22  a lot of agony that went through this, I am going to

         23  be very honest with you, this was a very serious

         24  kind of situation for me to sit back and think about

         25  the direction I was going to go in. I new that there
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          2  had to be oversight hearings, I knew that there was

          3  going to be a lot of criticism. I didn't anticipate

          4  it coming from my own, within our system, because

          5  right now there is not time for any of us to

          6  criticize one another on what should have happened,

          7  because I believe that we are going to have to pull

          8  together to make sure that this does not happen

          9  again.

         10                 When you talk in terms of -- it

         11  didn't happen in '98?

         12                 MR. TOBIAS: No, it did not.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: I have questions.

         14  Right now you cannot convince me, and I am not

         15  saying personally, because if you don't fess up that

         16  you made a mistake, or someone is not going to

         17  question you enough, because it is not just New York

         18  City, it was other parts of this country that went

         19  through the same kind of scenario.

         20                 MR. TOBIAS: That is correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: What you are

         22  telling me, and I wouldn't make that statement, from

         23  now on I would say I would hope that this didn't

         24  happen in '98 or '97 or all the other times that it

         25  has happened. Because I know how strict these tests

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            65

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  -- oh, there was a leak. If you do good, somebody

          3  says you leaked it and you pretested the kids. But

          4  in this case, the record must be clear that this did

          5  not happen on our shoulders. And you know what I am

          6  saying, "our shoulders", because I believe if you

          7  are part of this town, then you have to take the

          8  same kind of lumps that you take across the Board

          9  when it comes to issues that might not smell as good

         10  as other things. We take the credit for the good,

         11  and we have to take credit for the other ills. Tell

         12  me how you are now going to address yourselves in

         13  other kinds of situations and tests and so forth and

         14  come back again because you made a very, very

         15  important point to say that the state deals with

         16  these people, and I want to know how can I be

         17  assured that this is not going to happen? Are we are

         18  going to be able flag this before it gets to summer

         19  school unnecessary and all the other things.

         20                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Yes, let me

         21  say just a couple of things.

         22                 As you have read of course in today's

         23  paper now people are questioning the results of the

         24  Regents exam.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: I purposely
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          2  didn't read the paper this morning, because I didn't

          3  have enough room to comprehend all of the negative

          4  things that are being said individually about, one,

          5  individually about what should have happened, what

          6  should not have happened. I just think that

          7  everybody who is in the position to -- unless you

          8  are able to do something about it, I think everybody

          9  in this town should just shut up and provide the

         10  necessary mechanisms for us to move on and stop

         11  scaring these parents and these children half to

         12  death about not excelling because of -- and I am

         13  serious, every day I read the editorials, everybody

         14  got their opinion, nobody is putting up the money,

         15  and nobody is talking about the very same people

         16  that have accused us in the past of leaking tests

         17  because we did well.

         18                 You know, the doctor put a thought in

         19  my head, maybe we should look at the conspiracies on

         20  another level.

         21                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Yes, you

         22  raise a lot of issues and in fact the sad thing is

         23  this kind of thing happens periodically in

         24  education. There is no such thing as a perfect test.

         25  There just isn't.
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          2                 As sophisticated as the

          3  psychometricians have become and as sophisticated as

          4  we have become as consumers, there is still always

          5  the possibility of human error. That is what we live

          6  with. Sadly, our country has become so accustomed to

          7  that quick, you know, score, and so accustomed to

          8  believing test scores when it suits them, and not

          9  believing them when it doesn't suit them, that it is

         10  hard to wean this country away from reliance on

         11  standardized tests, whether it is in education or

         12  any other industry.

         13                 So, part of what we are fighting is

         14  the people wanting that quick sound bite information

         15  about how systems are doing, how students are doing,

         16  et cetera.

         17                 What I will tell you is we will come

         18  to you at a later date with the specifics. Tomorrow

         19  we are meeting with the lawyers. Our lawyers are

         20  meeting. The company and our lawyers. We can't

         21  divulge some of what we are going to be putting on

         22  the table because this is going to be part of the

         23  negotiations, but we certainly will come to you with

         24  all of the assurances that not only you require but

         25  we certainly require to make sure that we can be
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          2  comfortable in the use of this test or any test in

          3  the future. In fact, there are only three companies

          4  in this country that can produce this kind of test

          5  on a large scale basis, and at any given point in

          6  time, one of them has blown it.

          7                 There was a major snafoo in the

          8  entire State of California with another test

          9  publisher just this summer. This happens.

         10                 One of the reasons we built multiple

         11  criteria into our new promotion policy is so that we

         12  will never again be reliant on simply the test

         13  score, and the sad news is that this has driven a

         14  very hard lesson, but the good news is, it has

         15  driven a very hard lesson home to people that simple

         16  reliance on a test score is not the way to do

         17  business.

         18                 So, our policy reflects that, they

         19  are multiple criteria, people may not make a

         20  decision simply based on a score.

         21                 So, we are proceeding with-- and this

         22  was already built into our policy. We already knew

         23  that this was the way to go. So, we will be bringing

         24  you very specific assurances after the meetings that

         25  have occurred, first of all, between lawyers and
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          2  then between those of us in the program side and the

          3  test developers so we can assure ourselves, our

          4  parents, the community and you that we have taken

          5  every single precaution that can be taken to ensure.

          6                 And by the way, what you should

          7  remember is that the test itself is good. The test

          8  itself has taken years to develop and we have worked

          9  years to make sure this was a test that measured

         10  standards. So the test itself is a good test, it is

         11  the errors they made in inputting the data to get

         12  the national norm. We will never use national norms

         13  again.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: That is exactly

         15  the area that frightens me half to death, is the

         16  fact that those areas that could be controlled, can

         17  control individual children taking a test, but you

         18  can set up mechanisms for failure even though they

         19  may be excelling.

         20                 Out of all of the scenarios on what

         21  is taking place around this test, that part scares

         22  me more because it wasn't a human error as it

         23  related to individual children and their growth. It

         24  related to an issue that is set up nationally to

         25  decide percentage-wise on why you choose the New

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            70

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  York -- who else did you choose? There are a few

          3  other states.

          4                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: That were

          5  affected by this mistake?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Right.

          7                 MR. TOBIAS: The states of Indiana,

          8  Wisconsin, Tennessee, North Carolina, South Carolina

          9  and Nevada are the states that we know about.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Interesting. Very

         11  interesting, the selection of states that fell into

         12  this category.

         13                 You could think and read, you know,

         14  whatever you want to read, but those are the areas

         15  that I have problems with, that it would affect --

         16  you know, we know the mechanisms of plays, where if

         17  I can't get you, I can get you through somebody

         18  else. I worry about that. But you know, I worry

         19  about even more about it happening on the future

         20  heads of our varied, varied society, that this could

         21  happen and you could be taken out because somebody

         22  decides that percentage-wise if we can't get them

         23  here, that maybe you did excel, and I am sure you

         24  did, but maybe somebody didn't want that to happen.

         25  So, what would I do? I would come up with another
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          2  scenario, and the scenario would mean, well maybe

          3  they would be good with the test, but maybe I will

          4  find another way.

          5                 I am saying this publicly because I

          6  really don't care who analyzes and how it is

          7  analyzed, that it bothers me that we may have done

          8  what we were supposed to do, but somebody up there

          9  felt that, well, I wanted you in the first place, so

         10  I have another way, and it is not fair to the young

         11  people of this City that this should happen.

         12                 And I believe that those of you who

         13  are affected should really pull your resources

         14  together and fight this not only as a state but as

         15  states who have been affected and analyze the

         16  situation as to who would gain from this kind of

         17  scenario.

         18                 I am going to let him finish, and I

         19  know my colleagues want to ask questions, but I

         20  think what is more important in driving home the

         21  correction part of this that everybody only reads

         22  the beginning, you know, a long article everybody

         23  read the beginning, and nobody reads what is in

         24  between that there were human error not done on the

         25  part of the City of New York, but those people that
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          2  we put faith and confidence in that they were doing

          3  it right. And the same people who build in

          4  mechanisms so that you wouldn't cheat.

          5                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: That's

          6  correct. Just before Bob continues, let me just

          7  introduce Pat Haythe, who is supervising

          8  superintendent in the High School Division, she was

          9  at a retirement luncheon, so she joined us a few

         10  minutes late, because I know you are concerned about

         11  the Regents as well.

         12                 I am sorry. Bob.

         13                 MR. TOBIAS: Okay, why don't we move

         14  right into the impact of CTB's error on the

         15  assessment of Citywide performance in 1999. The

         16  first graph that I will show is the graph that we

         17  actually showed to you during a previous

         18  presentation, and this shows Citywide performance on

         19  the '99 reading test for all grades tested, and that

         20  would be 3, 5, 6 and 7 combined, and these are the

         21  results with the incorrect CTB calibrations, this is

         22  what we presented last June. And at that time we saw

         23  that we had an increase in performance from 43.6

         24  percent at or above the 50th percentile rank in 1998

         25  to 44.6 percent above in 1999. We reported that we
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          2  had a small gain but a gain nevertheless of one

          3  percentage point in the percent of students scoring

          4  at or above the 50th percentile rank.

          5                 When we applied the new corrected

          6  tables for converting raw scores to the national

          7  percentile ranks, and we applied those tables to

          8  every student's score, rescored all of the tests and

          9  then calculated Citywide performance, we saw a very

         10  dramatic affect. The actual performance in 1999 with

         11  corrected data was 48.5 percent of our students

         12  scoring at or above the 50th percentile rank which

         13  is approaching the national average. The national

         14  average is 50 percent of students scoring at or

         15  above the 50th percentile rank.

         16                 Our actual improvement over 1998 was

         17  not one percentage point, but it was 4.9 percent

         18  points a very different picture. That is the third

         19  year in a row that we have showed a large increase

         20  in performance, it is the largest increase in fact,

         21  one-year increase that we have seen since way back

         22  in 1980. So, we are seeing a steady upswing in

         23  performance with the accurate data across three

         24  years.

         25                 By grade level, these are the data
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          2  that we reported to you with the incorrect

          3  calibrations in June and we will just take a look at

          4  the impact of the correction and you will see that

          5  most grade levels are going up into the corrected

          6  data. And the impact was largest at grades five and

          7  six, where the corrections actually brought out

          8  performance at those two grade levels up over the

          9  national average, 51 percent at or above the 50th

         10  percentile in grade five. Six, grade six is 52.2

         11  percent, we exceeded the national average at those

         12  two grades.

         13                 If you look at the bottom of that

         14  chart you will see the correct change in performance

         15  between '98 and '99, and although we still show the

         16  decline at grade three of 2.5 percentage points, it

         17  was less of a decline than we had shown of the

         18  incorrect data at grades five and six, we have

         19  increases of 6.1 percentage points, and 11.9 percent

         20  points respectively, and those are very, very large

         21  increases in performance. Grade seven it was 4.9

         22  percent at or above the national average.

         23                 The next chart shows you the

         24  performance by community school district, including

         25  the Chancellor's district, with the incorrect data,
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          2  as we reported in June, and at that time, you see we

          3  have the horizontal there, the national average at

          4  50 percent, at that time we reported that only seven

          5  of our districts, plus one of the Chancellor's

          6  districts had scored at or above the national

          7  average.

          8                 When we move to the corrective data,

          9  you see that every district is showing an increase

         10  in performance. Now we have 14 districts, plus the

         11  special Chancellor's district scoring at or above

         12  the national average. We doubled the number of

         13  districts that exceeded the national average.

         14                 When we look at the improvement, the

         15  change in performance, and the next chart, this is

         16  what we showed in June with the incorrect data. And

         17  at that time there were ten districts, the districts

         18  below that, a dark horizontal line at zero, there

         19  were ten districts that showed declines in

         20  performance, some with rather steep declines, one

         21  especially with a rather steep decline in

         22  performance, when we corrected the data you will see

         23  that we get a very different picture. All of the

         24  districts are rising. Only one district showed a

         25  decline in performance, and all of the other are
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          2  showing gains in performance. Some districts showing

          3  gains as large as eight percentage points, eight and

          4  more percentage points, very large gains and a

          5  cluster of districts with gains between five and

          6  seven percentage points.

          7                 That is the impact on the system

          8  overall, and again, you just get a very different

          9  picture about how New York City schools are

         10  performing and how they have changed in their

         11  performance between '98 and '99.

         12                 Now, in terms of specific students,

         13  individual students, well on the individual end, the

         14  largest impact was on the students who were required

         15  to go to summer school, mandated summer school, and

         16  the effect was that students who had to attend in

         17  grade three and six. Grade eight was a state test,

         18  we didn't have the citywide test, so grade eight

         19  students were not affected by this error.

         20                 The next chart gives you a summary of

         21  the mandated summer school students who were

         22  affected by the CTB scoring error.

         23                 Now, first of all, not shown on this

         24  chart is the fact that there were 35,000 student,

         25  35,000 students overall who were required to go to
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          2  summer school in grades three, six and eight,

          3  because they had not met the promotional criteria on

          4  the Citywide tests with the incorrect data.

          5                 When we made the corrections, the

          6  changes, we went back and looked at the scores of

          7  these students, and we found, on the far right the

          8  total, across grades three and six, we found that

          9  there were 8,686 students who had incorrect scores,

         10  and when corrected the scores actually rose above

         11  the threshold for promotion, they rose above the

         12  promotional criteria.

         13                 Now, they rose above the promotional

         14  criterion by a two percentile rank. So, let's say a

         15  student at the promotional criterion was set at 15

         16  percentile rank, the students change their

         17  performance with the corrected data from about 13,

         18  14 percentile ranks, to 15, 16, 17 percentile rank.

         19  They exceeded the promotional criterion. However,

         20  their actual achievement as demonstrated by these

         21  scores shows that they still are showing low levels

         22  of achievement and all of these students could have

         23  benefitted by going to summer school, which is not a

         24  bad idea for these students, but clearly they had

         25  risen above the criterion with these scores, and so
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          2  they would not have had to go to summer school.

          3                 Now, the good news is that of these

          4  8,668 students, 5,176 went to summer school, they

          5  took the tests again in summer school, and they

          6  passed, and these students were promoted. So,

          7  although they had to go and originally they would

          8  not have had their promotional status, their

          9  promotion status was not changed by this change in

         10  test scores.

         11                 In the purple you have two groups of

         12  students who were affected, who had promotion status

         13  affected. There were 1,168 students who would have

         14  passed the tests in spring, they went to summer

         15  school, they took the tests again and they failed,

         16  1,168 did not pass the summer tests. These students

         17  were told that they would not be promoted.

         18                 There were an additional 2,324 who

         19  did not attend summer school, did not take the test,

         20  and they also were told that they were not promoted

         21  because they did not meet the promotional criteria.

         22                 Together that is 3,492 students who

         23  were not promoted, even though with the corrected

         24  data they had passed the promotional criteria back

         25  in the spring. These students, the parents of these
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          2  students, have been notified that they have the

          3  option of having their child promoted to the next

          4  grade because of the error, but they have been

          5  informed that their children's performance is still

          6  at a relatively low level of achievement and they

          7  still may have trouble succeeding in the next grade.

          8  Particularly grade three, those grade three students

          9  were promoted, now they are in grade four, they will

         10  have to take the state grade four ELA examination in

         11  the beginning of February this year and they are

         12  going to have a very difficult time with that exam.

         13                 Accordingly, they have been told, the

         14  parents have been told that even though they have

         15  the option of having their students promoted, they

         16  must attend a conference with the principal to

         17  discuss the student's academic record and the best

         18  placement for that student this year.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: I had mentioned

         20  earlier that we have something in place that could

         21  measure the rationale for failure. I am not talking

         22  about get-overs, but more or less in the category of

         23  the 1,168, there could have been something that may

         24  have been a miss or something. What could we do as a

         25  Board of Ed person to again have something in place

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            80

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  to measure that growth, taking under consideration

          3  also the fact that you talked about not just

          4  measuring them by test alone, but by other

          5  mechanisms, because there are some kids that just

          6  freeze up and just cannot take a test, as well as

          7  adults.

          8                 Is there anything that can be put in

          9  place to doublecheck ourselves to see why we think

         10  we know because of the test, are there other

         11  measures that can be put in place that could

         12  substantiate that this is a true failing factor?

         13                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Yes. As a

         14  matter of fact we have built that into our promotion

         15  policy. There are teacher assessments that are

         16  ongoing during the course of the year, and report

         17  card grades and what we call portfolios, which are

         18  compendia of student work.

         19                 The promotion policy was the next in

         20  the series of action we had to take in our system as

         21  we became a standards driven system.

         22                 We have actually been preparing for

         23  this policy for four years. Once you become a

         24  standards-driven system your road is paved for the

         25  next several years. There are a series of logical,
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          2  sequential steps that you take to truly become a

          3  standards driven system to truly implement

          4  standards.

          5                 The first step of course is to

          6  develop the standards, and you know about that

          7  process. The second is to align the assessments, and

          8  we began to do that with the state. We started doing

          9  this three years ago, and also changing our own

         10  test.

         11                 The next step was to put in the

         12  accountability system that you know we have put in

         13  for our superintendents and principals as well.

         14                 The next step is the accountability

         15  system for youngsters which is the promotion policy.

         16  So, we have been working towards this for four

         17  years. By establishing standards, we now have

         18  clearly defined benchmarks for teachers so that they

         19  understand, for example, what is an acceptable level

         20  of fourth grade work, in literacy and in

         21  mathematics, those are the two primary ones.

         22                 So that a teacher doesn't have to

         23  guess what is an appropriate level of work that this

         24  child has to demonstrate his or her ability to do.

         25  We have tangible evidence, hard documents, that
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          2  teachers can look at so that they know what is

          3  acceptable, so a teacher in the Bronx and a teacher

          4  in Brooklyn are using the same criteria to evaluate

          5  real student work, the work they do every single day

          6  in the classroom.

          7                 A piece of writing, for example, it

          8  is very clear what the elements of that writing has

          9  to be for an appropriate fourth grade level of work.

         10  So, we have not eliminated, because you never

         11  eliminate, we have reduced the level of subjectivity

         12  that teachers use, whether it is in English or in

         13  another language, about what is acceptable. So you

         14  have got the test score as one piece of evidence,

         15  and then you have the work that the child is doing

         16  as the larger body of evidence that a teacher can

         17  use to make good decisions about both what a child

         18  needs during the year. Because while there is a lot

         19  of noise about summer school, our business is during

         20  the school year. The real business of educating

         21  children is during the school year. Summer school

         22  and an extended year is to give those youngsters who

         23  needed additional time.

         24                 So we have put in, in the early

         25  childhood years, Dr. Hamer was absolutely correct,
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          2  the early childhood years are critical. We have an

          3  early childhood assessment system that is a

          4  checklist so teachers regardless of the language of

          5  children can track the development of those

          6  youngsters. So, we have built into the system a

          7  number of pieces of evidence that teachers can use

          8  and that parents can understand.

          9                 It is hard for parents to understand

         10  a percentile score. It is easier for them to look at

         11  their children's work, look at how it is developed

         12  over time, to see whether in fact their child is

         13  progressing. So, you are absolutely correct, the

         14  other bodies of evidence are extremely important in

         15  making these decisions and that is what we have

         16  built into our promotion policy and it has taken us

         17  four years to do this kind of work.

         18                 And the work that we have in our

         19  system ahead of us over the next several years, when

         20  we are talking about resources, yes, it is about

         21  resources for kids, but it is absolutely about an

         22  investment in our human capital, an investment in

         23  our teachers who want to do this work, and who

         24  clearly by the corrected tests results we know have

         25  been doing this work in raising the achievement
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          2  levels of youngsters.

          3                 Over the next several years, the most

          4  important thing that we can do is to make sure that

          5  every single one of our teachers and principals have

          6  the skills that they need to do this work to bring

          7  the youngsters to the higher standards.

          8                 So, those are the kinds of issues we

          9  will be coming back to you with when we talk about

         10  budget. I appreciate your willingness to look at the

         11  resources we need. It is the investment in our

         12  teachers and our principals so they can do this work

         13  to bring these youngsters to the higher standards.

         14  Because I absolutely agree with all of the body of

         15  research about retention. Retention as we currently

         16  practice it in this country, which is to recycle a

         17  child through the same old thing, is what doesn't

         18  work. Providing them with a different setting and

         19  not remediation, we need to wipe remediation out of

         20  our vocabulary. It is about acceleration. It is

         21  about accelerating the learning of our youngsters,

         22  and those are the pieces of evidence that we need to

         23  use to make those decisions.

         24                 That is more than you wanted to know,

         25  isn't it?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: In other words,

          3  this 1,168 children went through that process?

          4                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: They went

          5  through summer school and still failed the test at

          6  the end of summer school, and the test at the end of

          7  summer school was a legitimate test. There were no

          8  errors in the calibration of those tests. So what

          9  that tells me is, even though they would have passed

         10  in the spring had we had the correct data from the

         11  testing company, when they took another version of

         12  the same test at the end of summer, they didn't pass

         13  it. So, these are borderline children at best, and

         14  absolutely should have gone through summer school

         15  and would not have, had we had the corrective data

         16  in the spring.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Council Member

         18  Pinkett wanted to -- you know, this is such a wide

         19  range subject, until you lose your train if you

         20  don't just jump in and raise the question. I am

         21  mindful of the fact that when I am raising certain

         22  questions, there are questions that have been asked

         23  of me over the past few weeks and I need to let

         24  people know that there is a comparable answer to

         25  some of the questions that are being raised.
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          2                 Council Member Pinkett.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Thank you,

          4  Madam Chair.

          5                 It is quite possible because of the

          6  enormity of the subject you may want to have a

          7  follow-up hearing on this matter, and I appreciate

          8  the fact that you have held this hearing because I

          9  think this is very important.

         10                 I was struck by a certain response

         11  that you gave and also the answers given by those

         12  who administer the tests. You mentioned the four

         13  years preparation, and I remember when the chair of

         14  this Committee, Council Member Wooten, went into

         15  Brooklyn Tech and there was a hearing held about

         16  schools and what happened and how certain changes

         17  and procedures, the impact on youngsters, that

         18  perhaps there was not enough time given and that

         19  there were requirements imposed upon students before

         20  they were prepared, before schools were prepared,

         21  without adequate preparation, and the only ones who

         22  bore the penalty happen to be the students. And

         23  everyone else was scott-free. They were not

         24  responsible, no one else had the penalty, no one

         25  bore the stigma. The only people who were marked as
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          2  failures were the students. And Council Member

          3  Wooten, of course, was outraged by that, and we all

          4  concurred.

          5                 It seems to me with this we are

          6  continuing along the path saying we were prepared.

          7  We did all of the right things but we planned and we

          8  didn't include the parents, we didn't make all of

          9  the other steps that were necessary. They are good

         10  things and we plan to do good things, but the state

         11  made the changes and they said now this is what we

         12  want to do, we are going to do it.

         13                 And of course, there was another

         14  voice that said, you must leave children back

         15  because if they are not prepared they cannot be

         16  promoted. If we don't admit that then we are not

         17  telling the truth.

         18                 No one thought about the psyche of

         19  the children, you know, youngsters have feelings

         20  too, and also, children are not the kindest people,

         21  no one says, oh, you were left back but it was an

         22  error. No, you are dumb. You didn't get promoted. Ha

         23  ha ha. No one thought about how that youngster felt.

         24  And no one could say, or he or she could not say,

         25  oh, they made a mistake, and it was a complication
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          2  and it was an error and it was their fault, not

          3  yours. So, now we take comfort in saying, but, you

          4  see, even if we made that error, there are 1,168

          5  youngsters who needed to go to summer school. But

          6  you and I all know, if you have been in the system

          7  for a long time, there were a lot of youngsters who

          8  wanted to go to summer school and many of us for

          9  years had fought for summer school to bring

         10  youngsters up to speed. And the problem we had was

         11  getting seats in summer school for youngsters, and

         12  this, the hottest summer of all, when there is no

         13  air conditioning, in this 99 plus 44 percent of our

         14  schools we said go to summer school, and not only

         15  was it difficult for students, it was difficult for

         16  teachers.

         17                 So, I am wondering, while we do this

         18  and we come up with all of these answers and we say

         19  that these youngsters, 8,668, the threshold for

         20  promotion, even if you win by one vote, we all learn

         21  that the fact that you won is important. It means

         22  that the teacher had something to work with. The

         23  youngster had something to hope for. The teacher

         24  knew the limitations of those students. They knew

         25  the limitation of their students. So the opportunity
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          2  for the schools to improve, because they knew where

          3  the youngsters were deficient, I think that was the

          4  opportunity that was not considered.

          5                 Secondly, those youngsters who passed

          6  who didn't have to be attending summer school, meant

          7  that oh, well, it wasn't bad for them to go to

          8  summer school, you don't know what their parents had

          9  planned for that summer. And that was not taken into

         10  consideration.

         11                 My family had decided that we were

         12  going to have a family reunion, but we have got to

         13  cancel it because my son or daughter has to go to

         14  summer school and that is a priority. Their families

         15  are important to them too. But they would have had

         16  an opportunity to discuss that as a family, and a

         17  community, they are denied that.

         18                 Finally, I would think that when

         19  someone dies, schools are very happy to call up four

         20  counselors to take care of 4,000 students, how many

         21  counselors did you call together after you said to

         22  the 8,000 students who had not been -- who should

         23  not have been left back, we want to talk to you and

         24  tell you what it is that adults make mistakes,

         25  adults can be wrong. And we want to tell you, this
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          2  is an example of what can happen, but we don't want

          3  you to feel bad. We want you to know that despite

          4  this, we are going to work to make it up to you,

          5  even though we think summer school was not a total

          6  misfortune, we want you to know that we are sorry we

          7  put you in this position. We want you and your

          8  parents to know that we are prepared to work with

          9  you.

         10                 How many counselors did that? That to

         11  me would be very important. And I think schools need

         12  to think in that direction, because if you want to

         13  tell me you want to make atonement, you know, I

         14  believe in a day of atonement, but sometimes we need

         15  a whole year of atonement. But I believe that it is

         16  possible for schools also, and the firm that made

         17  the mistake, because I don't want to blame it all on

         18  schools, because I think that people love to say,

         19  oh, the school was at fault. We went to a good

         20  private agency and they were careless, like it or

         21  not, they didn't check their math and they should be

         22  marked a failure. And because they failed in other

         23  states, does not mean that they can't be excused,

         24  and they can't tell me that summer school was right

         25  for our kids at this time. I didn't ask them about
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          2  Vermont, I didn't ask them about South Carolina, at

          3  this particular time I am asking them about New York

          4  City. I think they owe us something. They owe

          5  retribution to those youngsters. They owe some way

          6  of helping to make up for the time that those

          7  youngsters have to give up. So I don't want to hear

          8  them telling me that it was good for them to go to

          9  some school, I want to know what they want to do to

         10  assist the Board of Education to recapture the time

         11  that those youngsters spent, and I think they owe

         12  that much.

         13                 And I am sorry I sound that way but

         14  that is how I feel. They owe the school system

         15  retribution. They owe those youngsters something.

         16  They owe them their pride, they owe them the right

         17  to feel good about themselves. And you take it away,

         18  don't tell them that they had to go to summer

         19  school, it is okay that they went to summer school.

         20                 And finally you mention all of these

         21  people who are getting their due. I would think, I

         22  am not part of your bargaining committee, but until

         23  you write your whole system so that you can have

         24  your system that includes your principals, your

         25  teachers, your parents and your students, I don't
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          2  know how you are going to get this system to work,

          3  because you have to have everyone included.

          4                 I believe in the public school

          5  system, and I know the chair does, because she has

          6  made a choice, and God forbid that the parent would

          7  try to interfere and tell her what is going to

          8  happen to their children, which she owns. But I

          9  think that it is very, very important that we

         10  realize when we deal with our young people, they are

         11  not just coming there to keep all of us employed.

         12  That is not the purpose of these children. Their job

         13  and their future is the future of this country. Like

         14  it or not, they are our future, and if we don't

         15  prepare them, then we are useless. We are useless.

         16  We serve no purpose.

         17                 So, I would really like you to think

         18  in the sense of you owe those kids something, you

         19  owe the board something, you owe the parents

         20  something. Every parent deserves a letter from you

         21  saying we are saying we are sorry.

         22                 Every parent deserves that letter

         23  from you. And don't tell me about this, because we

         24  are right.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Thank you.

          3  They are getting those letters. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Council Member

          5  Nelson.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you,

          7  Madam Chair.

          8                 Going back to the building systems

          9  capacity, just two quick things, I have a community

         10  meeting in Brooklyn at 4:00 and I can't go on if I

         11  wanted to, although if I was allowed to.

         12                 Early grade class reduction size, is

         13  there any specifics? Is it like 20 in the first

         14  grade, or are we shooting towards 18 or something

         15  like that?

         16                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: Early grade

         17  class size was implemented in essentially, roughly

         18  for about a third of the kids in the system in

         19  grades K to three this fall for the first time. Of

         20  those 30 some percent of the kids whose classes were

         21  reduced in size, then normal size for a K to three,

         22  actually for 1 to 3 is 25. Those classes for about a

         23  quarter of the kids in the system, those classes

         24  were reduced from 25 to 20. That is wherever there

         25  was space to do it.
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          2                 For an additional, what is 25 to 33,

          3  the third is for about eight percent, I am moving

          4  slow today, for an additional number of kids that

          5  difference, where there was not space in the

          6  building, the federal program, this was a

          7  combination of state and federal initiatives, both

          8  governments initiated class size reduction programs,

          9  the federal initiative, you can use those dollars to

         10  place additional teachers in classrooms, so even if

         11  you can't actually create a new class, with only 20

         12  kids, you can place additional teachers for small

         13  group work and other kinds of efforts. And so for

         14  the difference between a quarter and a third of the

         15  kids, those kids are receiving additional

         16  instructional time from additional teaching staff

         17  who have been hired. Not full time one to one, not

         18  an additional teacher in every one of those

         19  classrooms, because as you can imagine it is

         20  basically, you go from having four teachers from 100

         21  kids to five teachers for 100 kids when you move

         22  from 25 to 20. In a similar fashion, that kind of a

         23  ratio applied to the adding of teachers when we

         24  couldn't create new classrooms. Just about a third

         25  of the kids this year. Almost all very substantially
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          2  focused in low-performing schools.  Every district

          3  had to address low-performing schools first with

          4  early grade class size dollars before they could

          5  move to other classes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Where need is

          7  immediately addressed, it leads to a space problem,

          8  too, I would imagine.

          9                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: Well,

         10  low-performing schools actually tend often to be a

         11  little less well utilized and tend to have a little

         12  more space. So, they have actually been able to

         13  achieve slightly more actual class size reduction as

         14  opposed to adding additional teachers, in many of

         15  the schools, because frankly parents vote with their

         16  vote and you do get a little lower levels of

         17  utilization in low-performing schools in general.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Phony

         19  addresses and so on.

         20                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Special

         22  education is the last thing I want to ask.

         23                 Seamless and unified educational

         24  system, does that mean mixing more EH in with

         25  mainstream, especially in disciplinary problems, by
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          2  any chance?

          3                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: I am sorry,

          4  say the first part of your question again.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Well, this

          6  so-called seamless movement, I would imagine it is

          7  mainstreaming, but is it going to be to your

          8  knowledge in special ed?

          9                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Kids who have

         11  let's say EH or disciplinary problems and try to

         12  just push them also into the mainstream?

         13                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Well, we

         14  have obviously been very careful, for all of the

         15  obvious reasons. We have both a moral imperative and

         16  a legal imperative to provide the least restrictive

         17  environment for our youngsters. But there is still a

         18  very well protected process by which we make

         19  decisions about which child is ready for how much

         20  time, and which circumstances and into which

         21  classrooms. So, again, all of the obvious reasons,

         22  children who are acting out or have behavior

         23  problems actually are ore disruptive in a classroom

         24  than a child who has some reading difficulties.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Right.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: What you are

          3  doing is going into the second part of my hearing. I

          4  am very specific about sticking with my subject

          5  area, it deals with the social promotion, as well as

          6  the testing, so I would appreciate if you could put

          7  that question on hold and add to it or whatever you

          8  want for the next round.

          9                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: It is so

         11  important, Council Member Pinkett came up with an

         12  excellent suggestion, that it is a wide area and we

         13  want to be able to cover it all. We might ask for

         14  our next oversight to actually include a school that

         15  is already functioning under these regulations, if I

         16  might. You know, I am setting my subject area right

         17  now that we could go into one of the schools who are

         18  in the process of this whole change, so that in

         19  essence we could see what is taking place and move

         20  right into one of the auditoriums to complete a

         21  discussion on what we are seeing. I would much

         22  prefer that we do that.

         23                 It is a wide area and there are a lot

         24  of questions that need to be asked, and I know you

         25  are anxious to ask them, but however, I think that
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          2  the clarity, once the clarity and the cloud is

          3  lifted from this scenario that has taken place, we

          4  would be able to move rapidly, and to actuality,

          5  what is the promotional policy doing to actually

          6  substantiate what it says it is supposed to do,

          7  okay?

          8                 Council Member Fiala.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Thank you,

         10  Madam Chair.

         11                 I respect your wishes. My questions

         12  were going to be on special education, I will defer

         13  that.

         14                 Let me ask the Deputy Chancellor, or

         15  Deputy Chancellors --

         16                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: It is er. It

         17  is me.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: The number of

         19  students who did not take the summer test, what

         20  happens to them?

         21                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Again, it

         22  depends. If they fell into the category of

         23  youngsters for whom the correction in the test score

         24  meant that they actually made the criterion, then

         25  they will have received a letter from us directly to
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          2  the parents saying your child was eligible to be

          3  promoted, go to the school and have the

          4  conversation. And if they didn't, they are not being

          5  promoted.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Those that were

          7  part of that batch of I think 8,000 plus that were

          8  scored incorrectly --

          9                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: I know you sent

         11  letters and I think that was very important to do,

         12  do you have any stats on how many parents avail

         13  themselves of the option of saying I want little

         14  John or Susie to --

         15                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Not yet, but

         16  we are tracking them. We have these youngsters red

         17  flagged on or database and we met with our

         18  superintendents a week ago -- where are we, today is

         19  Thursday, a week ago yesterday to review all of this

         20  information with them so that they have all of the

         21  information about which youngsters fell into which

         22  categories and we are going to be tracking the

         23  disposition of those youngsters and what decisions

         24  have been made for them. So, we will be able to

         25  present that at a later date, if you would like.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Okay, thank

          3  you, Dr. Rizzo.

          4                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Council Member

          6  Linares.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Thank you.

          8  You probably have more information to share, but I

          9  do have one quick question looking at the charts and

         10  I have didn't district 32, has there been a change?

         11                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: It is in

         12  Brooklyn, it is in a different part of the scale.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: I saw 33

         14  there, and I don't know. In the charts I didn't find

         15  District 32.

         16                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: You know, I

         17  do that all the time. It is because 32 is -- if you

         18  look at the way they go across we end up with Queens

         19  and then Staten Island, since 32 is in Brooklyn but

         20  out of numerical sync it is back in the Brooklyn

         21  group, so I hear it right here.

         22                 MR. TOBIAS: About a quarter of the

         23  way back from the right.

         24                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: I do that

         25  every time.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: The question

          3  that I have, and it is something that I find

          4  disturbing in some respect is that often what guides

          5  what we do is the lowest performing districts, and

          6  when I look at the picture that here there is no

          7  exception when you look at any of the districts, in

          8  terms of the challenges that this district face, to

          9  me they are all failing districts. Some are perhaps

         10  doing a little better than others.

         11                 But I am more interested in looking

         12  at every single district and what the profile of

         13  those districts speak and say in terms of making the

         14  type of decisions that we need to make with limited

         15  resources, as we have available. And I was just

         16  curious, in seeing the districts that were in the

         17  lower performing scales there, whether you have

         18  conducted an assessment that I think needs to be

         19  done for all of the districts, but, for example, I

         20  would be interested in finding out what is the

         21  percentage of English learners in given districts? I

         22  would be interested in finding out what percentage

         23  of the teachers are teachers that are considered the

         24  super teachers or the teachers that have been

         25  retained and have been experienced and can share
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          2  with other teachers, as opposed to the TPD teachers,

          3  the temporary teachers, I want to know the really

          4  hard numbers that speak to how well is that given

          5  districts, all of the districts for that matter, in

          6  terms of the type of teachers that they have.

          7                 It is one thing to have a teacher

          8  that has been around that is experienced, is well

          9  trained, and you know, knows, you know, what the

         10  challenges are and how to tackle them. And another,

         11  if you have a certain percentage of teachers that

         12  are new and not well trained, you know, they are not

         13  qualified yet and so forth, or whether you have,

         14  what percentage of the student population that you

         15  have, in different ways have been exposed to

         16  preschool and pre-K and K and so forth, I am

         17  interested in finding out whether districts have

         18  available not just summer school, or after school,

         19  how many students have access to after school

         20  programs, who many have access to summer school? I

         21  would like to find out what role in the context of

         22  what role we established here we expect parents to

         23  play, and whether in assessing and holding

         24  accountable, you know, the staff and the people who

         25  make decisions in schools, but also parents, how
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          2  much weight in this is being played, and I am more

          3  interested in that type of assessment and that type

          4  of outlook, because that is how it helps us

          5  determine where do we need to put our resources. I

          6  venture to say that one of the reasons that district

          7  2 has experienced, under the leadership of Tony

          8  Alvarado, dramatic improvement is because I know

          9  Tony Alvarado and his philosophy and approach. He

         10  has decided to gamble and invest in as much as he

         11  could in preparing teachers and making them super

         12  teachers, because he knows that there is a result

         13  that comes with that, and I just wonder, you know,

         14  how that compares with how it was approaching other

         15  districts.

         16                 But I am very curious about these

         17  districts in the lower end and where some of the

         18  things that I am highlighting for you fall into and

         19  I can tell you I suspect that all of the things that

         20  are mentioned here are probably abysmal when it

         21  comes to how many children are -- oh, I forgot

         22  overcrowding, okay?

         23                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Right.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: I bet you

         25  when we look at that picture, we really would have
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          2  good indicators as to how to really be more

          3  effective in the uses of resources and wiser in

          4  terms of how to proceed so that what we have when we

          5  talk about assessment we just are not concerned

          6  about the publication in the New York Times and the

          7  newspapers of where different districts rank, like

          8  when you compare them to each other. But rather we

          9  are looking at different criteria that parents

         10  understand, that public understands, the

         11  policy-maker understands, that we understand here,

         12  so that we know where we are really taking ourselves

         13  with the challenges that we have.

         14                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: You have

         15  raised all of the critical issues that we are

         16  wrestling with, and you are absolutely correct, and

         17  we are poised now and have already begun doing what

         18  you are suggesting, which is looking at all of the

         19  aspects, all of the indicators that are in each of

         20  our districts, to look at how that impacts on

         21  student achievement, and we know this both from

         22  experience and certainly from research that the

         23  single most important ingredient is skill level of

         24  the teacher. There is no doubt about that, there is

         25  skill level of the teacher. If a child has more
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          2  time, with a skilled teacher a child is going to

          3  accelerate his or her learning. That is just common

          4  sense and it is also borne out by experience.

          5                 This is why I was saying earlier that

          6  the investment this system has to make and everybody

          7  who cares enough to invest in this system has to be

          8  in our teaching staff primarily and certainly in our

          9  principals because they are the leaders of those

         10  schools.

         11                 The investment in their professional

         12  development will make or break all of the reform

         13  efforts that we have put into place. And I believe

         14  that the emphasis on professional development has

         15  already yielded results. I think the continuing

         16  movement of the system in this direction, and we are

         17  not satisfied with this but we are glad that it is

         18  moving in this direction and not in the opposite,

         19  bears out the fact that an investment in these

         20  people and our most valuable resource is going to

         21  pay off and has paid off and we need to accelerate

         22  that.

         23                 So, I think you know that as we have

         24  taken more schools into the Chancellor's district,

         25  our lowest performing schools because we want to
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          2  eradicate SURR from our vocabulary, we have built

          3  into that district an additional week of work for

          4  those teachers without youngsters because those

          5  teachers need that kind of comprehensive focused

          6  professional development to do the new work we are

          7  asking them to do, whether they are new teachers or

          8  veteran teachers, they still have to learn this new

          9  work that we have asked them to do around standards

         10  and assessment.

         11                 And we have built professional

         12  development into their school day, because there is

         13  no other industry in this country that made the

         14  Fortune 500 list that asks its people to learn its

         15  new technology on their vacation time, on their

         16  weekends and after the work day, it has to be part

         17  of the --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: And paying

         19  them misery salaries (sic).

         20                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Absolutely.

         21  So, we have begun to model that in our Chancellor's

         22  district to say if you want results you have to

         23  invest in the people who you are asking to deliver

         24  the result. That is really the work. And you know

         25  that it is hard for the general public to understand
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          2  the importance of that investment, and part of our

          3  job, and with your help and others, we have to get

          4  the message out that we know how to do good solid

          5  professional development that it has got to be built

          6  into people's work days, we will be burying these

          7  people, you need a vacation, you need time, down

          8  time, and there is no other industry that tries to

          9  move itself ahead by doing it in down time.

         10                 So, the investment is absolutely

         11  critical, and you know that we increased the salary

         12  of the teachers in the Chancellor's district to

         13  attract the best and the brightest to those schools,

         14  because we have, as you know, hard-to-staff

         15  districts that have been traditionally hard to staff

         16  in our school system for years, for decades, this is

         17  not a new phenomenon.

         18                 And you also know that, and this is

         19  where the inequity issues come in that the

         20  Chairperson has certainly mentioned, we cannot

         21  compete with our colleagues in other parts of the

         22  state in terms of salaries. We are single handedly

         23  providing personnel, wonderfully trained personnel

         24  for Westchester, Yonkers, and you know, a whole lot

         25  of other places because we get the best and the
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          2  brightest, we train them, then they go off to get

          3  the kind of salaries they deserve. So this is what

          4  we are up against.

          5                 So we know what the good news is, we

          6  know what the issue is, the good news is we know

          7  what to do about it, the bad news is we don't have

          8  the resources that are necessary to do it, and that

          9  is what we will be coming to you for.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Let me make

         11  just a suggestion to conclude.

         12                 If the concern is that, you know, we

         13  are planning or implementing all of this and we need

         14  resources, and I agreed that we do, what we want to

         15  do over the summers and after school with students,

         16  it seems to me that the same challenge is there if

         17  we recognize that we have a teaching crisis in terms

         18  of prepared teachers, the same type of investment

         19  must be made for the professional staff, and I mean

         20  not just teachers, I mean administrators as well.

         21                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Absolutely.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES:  And I also

         23  mean other supportive staff, that needs to be

         24  invested, and incentives need to be there for what

         25  they need to do, not in the spare time between
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          2  periods, but after school, the incentives need to be

          3  there, that means money, and in the summer times, in

          4  order for us to really prepare the workforce that we

          5  need within the school system.

          6                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Yes, thank

          7  you. Again, we are the only industry I know of that

          8  doesn't operate on a 12-month schedule.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: I really need to

         10  make some kind of assessment here. We have a number

         11  of speakers who we have not even gotten around to,

         12  and it is so unfair because all of the principals

         13  are not here. Would anybody have a problem of

         14  continuing this hearing Friday, October 8th, at

         15  1:00, having all of the people who are not able to

         16  get around to come on first?

         17                 Judy, would you have any problem in

         18  having yourself or someone here?

         19                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Well, I will

         20  certainly have -- I don't have my calendar right

         21  here in front of me, but we will certainly make sure

         22  that somebody is here to represent us, absolutely.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Is that okay with

         24  the speakers who have not spoken? Would you rather

         25  us continue it on or come back Friday at 1:00 where
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          2  you will come on first, and we will just continue

          3  where we left off. I need to hear you out loud and

          4  identify yourselves. Just get up and identify

          5  yourselves, who you are.

          6                 (Speaking from the audience not in

          7  the microphone.)

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: No problem. We

          9  will continue this on Friday, a week from now. Not

         10  only that, I would like to also extend this hearing

         11  to include parents who are directly involved both

         12  pro and con in this whole scenario, and if someone

         13  would help me identify that.

         14                 Where is the parent representative?

         15                 MR. STEVENS: Granville Stevens,

         16  United Parents Associations of New York City.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: All right, then

         18  we need your cooperation as well. If you would be in

         19  touch with the Council, the telephone number is

         20  788-9113, Barbara McDermott. Would you call her and

         21  just give us the names? But right now we are going

         22  to start out with two principals at the next, United

         23  Federation of Teachers and CSA. It will be between

         24  the two of them, I don't want to lobby who was

         25  first.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            111

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 But United Parents Association, as

          3  well as -- who is Communication Workers of America?

          4  How did that get in here? Well, if they are

          5  interested in Education, we will take them too. And

          6  Ed Flynn. You agree? I don't care what you do, as

          7  long as you just keep some order in my meeting. I

          8  think we need to take under consideration that this

          9  is one of a very special kind of committee that is

         10  heard and looked at by parents all over the City, so

         11  I would want to think that you gentlemen will

         12  conduct yourselves accordingly, okay? With a message

         13  out there to parents that this is most important and

         14  it impacts on children. We would not want anybody to

         15  get out of control in front of our audience, would

         16  we?

         17                 Again, I want to thank everybody for

         18  coming. I thank my colleagues. I didn't even ask

         19  you, but you are so faithful, you have been here for

         20  a couple of hours, are you free to continue this

         21  with parents and some of our principal family people

         22  on Friday at 1:00?

         23                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Next Friday?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Yes. We are not

         25  going to hold you long, we are just going to pick up
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          2  where we are right now. Is that all right?

          3                 (Unidentified speaker from the

          4  audience not speaking into microphone.)

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: You are taking my

          6  job away from me. In fact, Barbara and I just had a

          7  brief discussion on the leadership team issues.

          8                 Judy, you have to know that that is a

          9  wide range of questions that are coming in to us

         10  from all parts of town, and I would hope that maybe

         11  you would be in the position, or somebody would be

         12  in the position to address that. If we could address

         13  that right after that brief continuation of or

         14  speakers --

         15                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Okay.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: You could have

         17  someone here, you or Spence, or who is ever in the

         18  position to do it.

         19                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: That is

         20  Harry's --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: To kind of update

         22  us on where everything is, and I will share with you

         23  between now and Friday on some of the kinds of

         24  questions that are coming to this Committee.

         25                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Thank you.
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          2                 Sure, I will tell Mr. Spence and I am

          3  sure either he or one of his staff members will be

          4  here to talk about that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: I will accept a

          6  staff person because this is a continuation.

          7                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: I appreciate

          8  that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:   I have a rule

         10  that I like mostly principals present.

         11                 I want to also congratulate our new

         12  person who is now in charge of the High School

         13  Division. I look forward to working with you. And

         14  the other guys, they are old friends of mine and I

         15  know where they are.

         16                 But however, I want to thank all of

         17  you for coming and your patience.

         18                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: I knew this would

         20  be a biggy. It is. We will continue this next

         21  Friday, October the 8th, at 1:00 p.m.

         22                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: This meeting is

         24  adjourned. No, this meeting is recessed until then.

         25                 (Hearing recessed at 4:15 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 30th day of September 1999.
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